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Bangkok Commercial Asset Management Public Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016
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1.
Background

Under the financial institutions development plan devised by the Ministry of Finance pursuant to the Cabinet’s resolution dated August 14, 1998, Bangkok Commercial Asset Management Public Company Limited (BAM or the Company) was established by Bangkok Commerce Plc. (formerly known as Bangkok Bank of Commerce Plc.) while 96.53% of the shares of Bangkok Commerce Plc. are owned by the Financial Institutions Development Fund (FIDF).

On January 7, 1999, BAM was registered as a limited company pursuant to the Civil and Commercial Code, with Bangkok Commerce Plc. owning 99.99% of its shares. On January 28, 1999, it was registered as an asset management company under the Emergency Decree on Asset Management Company B.E. 2541 with the main objective to manage non-performing assets of Bangkok Bank of Commerce Plc.

On March 29, 2002, the Company added more of its objectives in respect of management of non-performing assets and being an agent for debt collection pursuant to the Emergency Decree on Thai Asset Management Corporation B.E. 2544, including custody and management of assets, transfer documents or other documents and all relevant matters.

On February 4, 2003, the official receiver issued a warrant of order no. 1338/2546 which required Bangkok Commerce Plc. to transfer to FIDF all shares in BAM, totaling 546,999,993 shares with a par value of 25 Baht per share at the total book value of 13,674,999,825 Baht, thereby leading FIDF to become a direct shareholder of the Company.

On December 25, 2015, BAM registered a transformation into a public company in the name of Bangkok Commercial Asset Management Public Company Limited, headquartered at 99 Surasak Road, Silom, Bang Rak, Bangkok, to operate the business of purchasing or receiving transfer of non- performing loans ( NPLs) and non-performing assets (NPAs) for management or for further disposal or transfer.

2.
Basis for Preparation of the Financial Statements

2.1
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai Accounting Standards prescribed by law pursuant to the Accounting Professions Act, B.E. 2547, Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and the Notification of the Bank of Thailand ( BOT) No. FPG. 22/ 2558, Re: Preparation and Announcement of Financial Statements of a Finance Company and a Credit Foncier Company dated December 4, 2015.
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2.
Basis for Preparation of Financial Statements (cont.)

An English language version of the financial statements has been prepared based on the Thai language version of the financial statements. Where there is any conflict in either the substance or the interpretation between the two languages, the Thai language financial statements shall prevail.

The financial statements have been prepared based on historical cost unless stated otherwise in the accounting policies.

2.2
These financial statements are prepared for specific objectives to be supporting information in the prospectus for the Company’ s initial public offering of its shares and in the filling for permission to issue and offer ordinary shares of the Company from the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

3.
Summary on Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements prepared for the specific purpose are based on the same accounting policy and calculation methods as those used in the preparation of the financial statements for the general purpose for the year ended December 31, 2018.

3.1
Recognition of income

a) Interest income from loans purchased

The Company recognizes interest income from non-performing loans (NPLs) acquired or transferred from other financial institutions when debt payments are made by debtors, divided into two cases below: Case of NPLs with debt restructuring or compromising agreements

The Company recognizes interest income when paid by debtors by the individual rate of return approach where the rate of return is calculated from cash flow projected to be paid from each acquired receivable based on debt restructuring or compromising agreements. In case the agreement requires asset transfer for debt settlement, the Company will use the estimated value of the transferred asset for debt settlement as the projected cash inflow for calculation of the individual rate of return.

However, if the debt restructuring agreement requires auction of the collateral asset, the Company will not use the estimated value from the auction as part of the cash flow projection due to uncertainty of the value to be received.
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3.1
Recognition of income (cont.)

Case of NPLs with debt restructuring or compromising agreements (cont.)

On the date of receipt of the debtor’ s payment, the Company will recognize interest income with calculation made on the overdue period from the date of execution of the debt restructuring or compromising agreements, or the date of the latest receipt of payment, until the date of receipt of the payment, based on the rate of return calculated above. Recognition of interest income will not be in the amount exceeding the amount of payment received from the debtor, with the difference thereof after the recognition of interest income to be deducted from the cost of loans purchased.

Case of NPLs without debt restructuring or compromising agreements

Debt payment received from each debtor in whatsoever case ( cash received from debtor’ s debt settlement or payment received from auction of the collateral asset) will be entirely deducted from principal debt. Difference arising from the amount received exceeding the cost of loans purchased will be presented as gain on loans purchased. The Company will recognize these items as below:

· In case of receipt of cash from the debtor, income recognition will be made on the date of receipt of such cash payment.
· In case a collateral asset of debtor is put up for auction sale at Legal Execution Department, the Company will record the deduction of debt on the date when the buyer has completed payment to Legal Execution Department and will record accrued income from auction sale at Legal Execution Department as an account receivable.
· In case of receipt of the transferred asset of the debtor coming from the auction of the collateral asset or the transfer of asset for debt settlement, such transferred asset will be recorded at the bidding price or the price agreed upon with the debtor deducted by the cost of loans purchased. Also, in case the value of the transferred asset exceeds the amount of outstanding loans purchased, the difference will be presented as revaluation of properties for sale so that the value of the asset recorded in the financial statements would not exceed the cost of loans purchased. The recognition will be made on the date of receipt of the transferred asset.
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3.1
Recognition of income (cont.)

b) Interest income from cash at financial institutions

Interest income from cash at financial institutions is recognized on an accrual basis.

c) Fee and service income

Fee and service income is recognized on an accrual basis.

d) Interest and dividend income from investment

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis. Dividend income is recognized upon having the right to receipt of dividend.

e) Gain (loss) on investment

Gain (loss) on investment is recognized as income or expense on the transaction date.

3.2
Recognition of expenses

a)
Interest expense

Interest expense is recognized as an expense on an accrual basis . In case interest is included in notes payable, the interest will be recognized as deferred interest payable and amortized as expense by the individual rate of return method throughout the tenor of the notes.

b)
Other expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

3.3
Investment in securities

Investment in all kinds of debt securities and marketable equity securities which are classified as available- for- sale securities is presented at fair value. Any change in the fair value of such securities is separately presented in other comprehensive income in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, and transferred to other components of shareholders’ equity in the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity. It will be recognized as profit or loss upon disposal of the investment.

Investment in held-to-maturity debt securities is presented at cost value. The Company writes off surplus/deficit of debt securities value based on the individual rate of return. This written- off/ recognized amount will be presented as adjusted interest receivable.

Investment in non-marketable equity securities in which the Company does not have control power, directly and indirectly, is regarded as general investment and presented at cost net of allowance for impairment of investments (if any).
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3.3
Investment in securities (cont.)

Fair value of marketable securities is calculated based on the final quoted price at the end of the last business day of the year. Meanwhile, fair value of debt securities is calculated based on the yield rate announced by the Thai Bond Market Association or other markets, or the yield rate of the government bond adjusted with appropriate risk value, as the case may be.

The Company will recognize impairment loss (if any) of available-for-sale securities, investment in held-to-maturity securities and general investment in the part of profit or loss in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

In the disposal of investment, the difference between net consideration received and book value of investment will be recorded in the part of profit or loss in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In case where only partial disposal of investment is made, book value per unit to be used in calculating the cost of disposed investment is figured out on a weighted average basis.

In case of investment acquired from debt restructuring or transfer of assets for debt payment, the Company will recognize the cost of investment at the agreed price but not exceeding the book value of outstanding loans purchased. In case the Company holds shares more than 20% or 50% but does not have control power or influence in such entity, the Company will still classify the investment in such entity as general investment and it will not be presented as investment in associated or subsidiary company.

3.4
Loans purchased

Each NPLs acquired or transferred from other financial institution are recorded at acquisition cost or transfer cost plus expenses incurred from the acquisition or transfer of such NPLs, and will be entirely itemized as loans purchased. Loans purchased are presented in amount net of allowance for doubtful accounts (if any), and doubtful accounts recognized in the part of profit or loss in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

3.5
Allowance for doubtful accounts of loans purchased

The Company has set aside the allowance for doubtful accounts of loans purchased by adopting the Notification of BOT No. FPG. 5/2559, dated June 10, 2016, where applicable to the Company’s transactions. Under the said regulations, debts are mainly classified by the overdue period and adjusted with additional amount of payment expected to be non-collectible from the debtors based on the analysis and assessment of the status of debtors as experienced in the consideration of risk and collateral value. The increased ( decreased) amount of allowance for doubtful accounts is recognized as expenses during the year. Classification criteria are as below:
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3.5
Allowance for doubtful accounts of loans purchased (cont.)

	Classification
	
	Overdue period
	
	Basis of allowance for doubtful accounts

	
	
	
	
	

	Class 1 Pass
	
	0 - 30 days
	
	Allowance  for  doubtful  accounts  is  set  at  the

	Class 2 Special Mention
	
	31 - 90 days
	
	highest value derived from any of the following:

	
	
	
	
	1) 100% of the difference between loans purchased,

	
	
	
	
	which is higher, and the lowest of 90% of collateral

	
	
	
	
	value, or mortgage value, or debt on an accrual

	
	
	
	
	basis, or

	
	
	
	
	2) The difference between loans purchased, which

	
	
	
	
	is higher, and cash flow from debt restructuring

	
	
	
	
	expected to be received in the future, discounted

	
	
	
	
	to  present  value  by  using  the  interest  rate

	
	
	
	
	under the debt restructuring agreement ( MLR) as

	
	
	
	
	the discount rate.

	Class 3 Substandard
	
	91 - 180 days
	
	Allowance  for  doubtful  accounts  is  set  at  the

	Class 4 Doubtful
	
	181 days - 12 months
	
	highest  value  between  100%  of  the  difference

	Class 5 Doubtful of Loss
	
	over 12 months
	
	between loans purchased, which is higher, and the

	
	
	
	
	lowest of present value of cash flow expected to be

	
	
	
	
	received from disposal of collaterals ( discounted

	
	
	
	
	according to debtor ageing and status), or mortgage

	
	
	
	
	value, or debt on accrual basis.


All newly acquired NPLs which are classified as doubtful of loss ( Class 5) are formerly NPLs of financial institutions and the Company has not yet taken any action on such NPLs. After executing debt restructuring agreements with the debtors, the Company will reclassify those classified as doubtful of loss ( Class 5) or doubtful (Class 4) to substandard (Class 3). If they are able to comply with the debt restructuring agreements for at least three consecutive months or three consecutive repayment installments, whichever is longer, they will be reclassified to pass (Class 1).
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3.6
Debt restructuring

In case of debt restructuring in which the Company gives relaxation on debt payment conditions, the Company calculates fair value of post-restructuring debt based on the present value of cash flow expected to be received in future discounted by loan interest rate according to the debt restructuring agreements ( MLR) . The difference between the fair value so calculated which is lower and the previous outstanding amount of the debt will be recognized as allowance for doubtful accounts and regarded as an expense in full amount in the part of profit or loss in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the debt restructuring year. Such allowance for doubtful accounts will be reviewed using the present value of cash flow expected to be received in the remaining period and adjusted with doubtful accounts.

In case of debt restructuring with acceptance of transfer of asset or equity interest, the Company records the asset or equity interest so transferred as the cost of asset at the agreed value but not exceeding the book value of outstanding loans purchased.

Loss from debt restructuring due to reduction of the book value of outstanding principal debt is recognized as loss in the part of profit or loss when there is a debt restructuring.

3.7
Properties for sale

Properties for sale include properties received from acquisition/ transfer from asset management companies and financial institutions, asset transfer by debtors for debt settlement, and auction of debtors’ assets for debt settlement.

Properties for sale received from acquisition/ transfer from asset management companies and financial institutions are presented at transfer price (acquisition cost) together with transfer expenses for such asset acquisition.

Properties for sale acquired from financial institutions through auction with payment made in form of non-interest bearing promissory notes are recorded at cost price of cash equivalence excluding interest. The difference between the cost price of cash equivalence and the amount payable is presented as deferred interest payable and amortized as expense throughout the tenor of promissory notes.

Properties for sale acquired from asset transfers by debtors and properties for sale acquired from auction of debtors’ assets for debt settlement are presented at cost price (based on transfer price from debtors or auction price or purchase price but not exceeding the book value of outstanding loans purchased on the asset acquisition date) together with transfer expenses for such asset acquisition, or the value expected to be recovered, whichever is lower. The value expected to be recovered is based on the latest appraisal price deducted by selling expense estimates.
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3.7
Properties for sale (cont.)

Profit or loss from disposal of properties for sale is recognized in the part of profit or loss in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when there is a disposal. Impairment loss is recognized as expense in the part of profit or loss in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when it actually occurs.

3.8
Installment sale receivables

Installment sale receivables arise from selling properties for sale on an installment payment. The Company records the difference between the selling price and the cost of properties for sale as deferred gross margin from installment sale and will recognize it as income from installment sale when the aggregate amount of cash received from the debtor exceeds the cost of properties for sale. The profit recognized will not exceed the aggregate amount of cash received which is higher than the cost of properties for sale.

The Company sets aside the allowance for doubtful accounts of installment sale receivables using the difference between the book value of debt and the price expected for sale of properties, which are paid by installments, based on the latest appraisal price after deduction of discount and expense estimates.

3.9
Accrued income from auction sale

This item arises from sales at auction of collateral assets of debtors at Legal Execution Department. There are two cases as below:

1. In case an outside party wins the auction

In case a collateral asset is put up for auction and an outside party wins the auction, such item will be recorded as accrued income from auction sale on the date when the buyer has made full payment to the Legal Execution Department, provided that such collateral asset is under first mortgage only. The Company will record the estimated operating expense to be collected by Legal Execution Department at the rate of 7% of the auction price. The estimated auction expense is presented as a deduction item from accrued income from auction sale.

2. In case the Company wins the auction like an outside party

In case the Company is the buyer of the collateral asset of the debtor and has already made full payment to Legal Execution Department, this item will be recognized as accrued income from auction sale at the auction price less purchase fee of 3.5% of the auction price.
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3.10
Premises and equipment and depreciation

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for asset impairment (if any). Depreciation is calculated by the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of each type of assets as follows:

	
	Depreciation calculation method
	
	Percentage

	Building
	Straight-line
	5

	Building improvement
	Daily straight-line
	10 - 15

	Equipment
	Straight-line
	20

	Car
	Straight-line
	20

	Computer
	Straight-line
	33.33


Equipment consists of furniture, decorations and office equipment.

The calculation methods for depreciation, useful life and residual value of the assets are reviewed at least at the end of every accounting year and are adjusted as deemed appropriate.

Depreciation is taken into account in the calculation of operating results. The Company does not calculate depreciation for property and work in process.

Premises and equipment will be written off upon disposal thereof or no economic benefits expected from the use or disposal thereof in future. Profit or loss from asset disposal (difference between net consideration received from disposal of the asset and book value thereof) will be recognized in the part of profit or loss in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

3.11
Intangible assets and amortization

Intangible assets, comprising computer software, are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and allowance for impairment (if any).

The Company amortizes intangible assets with limited useful life systematically throughout the useful life period of such assets, and evaluates impairment of such assets when there is any indication of impairment thereof. The Company will review the amortization period and method of intangible assets at least every year-end. Amortization and allowance for impairment are recognized as expense in the part of profit or loss in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Intangible assets with limited useful life have a useful life of approximately five years and there is no amortization of work in process.
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3.12
Impairment of assets

In the ending of each reporting period, the Company will assess whether there is any indication of impairment of its assets. If there is any indication thereof, the Company will figure out the impairment and recognize impairment loss when the asset value expected to be recovered is lower than the asset book value. In this regard, the asset value expected to be recovered refers to the asset fair value less asset selling cost or asset usage value, whichever is higher .

The Company will recognize impairment loss in the part of profit or loss in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In the assessment of asset impairment, if there is any indication that impairment loss recognized in the previous year has decreased or no longer existed, the Company will figure out the value expected to be recovered of such assets and will reverse impa irment loss recognized in the previous year provided that there is a change in the projection to determine the value expected to be recovered after the latest recognition of impairment loss. The increase in the asset book value as resulting from such reversal of impairment loss must not exceed the justifiable book value . In case of no recognition of impairment loss in the previous years, the Company will immediately reverse and recognize impairment loss in the part of profit or loss .

3.13
Related party transactions

A related party of the Company means a person or business that has control power over the Company, or is controlled by the Company, directly or indirectly, or is under the same control as the Company .

In addition, a related person or party also includes a person or business possessing the voting right, directly or indirectly, which has significant influence on the Company, its key management, directors or employees who have controlling power in the Company ’s operation.

3.14
Corporate income tax

The Royal Decree issued by virtue of the Revenue Code regarding Tax Exemption (No. 362) B.E. 2542 provides that Bangkok Commercial Asset Management Public Company Limited shall be exempted from corporate income taxes for net profit earned from management of non-performing assets acquired or transferred from financial institutions.

3.15
Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

The Company recognizes salaries, wages, bonuses and provident fund contributions as expenses when they actually occur.
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3.15
Employee benefits (cont.)

Post-employment benefits

Provident fund project

The Company and employees have jointly set up a provident fund consisting of money contributions made by the employees and the Company on a monthly . Provident fund assets are separated from assets of the Company. The portion contributed by the Company to the provident fund is recorded as an expense in the accounting period when the transaction occurs.

Post-employment benefit project

The Company is liable to pay compensation to employees upon their employment termination in accordance with the announcement of the State Enterprise Labor Relations Committee on minimum standards of working conditions in state enterprises and other staff benefit programs. They are regarded as post-employment benefits for the employees. Moreover, other long-term employee benefits are made available, such as leave days that can be carried forward to the following year.

The Company calculates liability under such post-employment benefits and other long-term employee benefit projects by the projected unit credit method. Assessment of contingent liability is undertaken by an independent expert on an actuarial basis.

Actuarial gains or losses in relation to post- employment benefits are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and gains or losses in relation to other long- term benefit projects are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

3.16
Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company incurs debt as a result of past events and with possibility to lose economic benefits from payment of such debt as well as based on its reliable assessment of such obligation. Provisions that are recognized in the statement of financial position include provisions for post-employment benefits, possible damages from prosecution and other provisions.

Provisions are recorded as other operating expenses and as provisions in the statement of financial position. The Company reviews provisions regularly and records changes in provisions by increasing or decreasing other operating expenses.
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3.17
Building and equipment lease contracts

Most of the Company’ s building and equipment lease contracts which risks and equity interests are not passed on to the lessees are regarded as operating lease contracts. The amounts paid under the contracts are recognized as expenses in the part of profit or loss by the straight- line method throughout the lease contractual terms.

3.18
Fair value measurement

Fair value means the price expected to be received from the sale of assets or the price to be paid for transfer of debts to other parties. The transaction occurs under normal circumstances between the buyer and the seller (market participants) on the date of fair value measurement. The Company uses the quoted price in the market with liquidity for fair value measurement of assets and liabilities which are required by relevant financial reporting standards to be measured at fair value except in case which the market has no liquidity for assets or liabilities of the same nature or no quoted price in the market with liquidity can be identified, the Company will then work out the fair value by using the valuation approaches considered suitable under the circumstances, and try to use noticeable information in relation to the assets or liabilities to be measured as much as possible.

Hierarchy of fair value for measurement and disclosure of fair value of assets and liabilities in financial statements is in three levels by type of information used as below:

Level 1
Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2
Other observable inputs of assets or liabilities, directly or indirectly

Level 3
Unobservable inputs such as data on projected future cash flows

In the ending of each reporting period, the Company will assess the necessity of the transfer of transactions between levels of fair value of assets and liabilities held as of the ending of each reporting period in which fair value measurement regularly takes place.

4.
Exercise of Discretion and Important Accounting Estimates

In preparation of financial statements according to financial reporting standards, Management is always required to exercise discretion and make projection of uncertain issues . Such exercise of discretion and projection have effects on the amount s stated in the financial statements and information presented in the notes to financial statements . Actual figures may differ from the estimates. Exercise of discretion and important projection are as f ollows:
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4.1
Recognition of interest income from loans purchased

The Company uses individual rate of return in calculation of interest income from loans purchased in case of debtors with debt restructuring agreement. In calculation of the individual rate of return, Management is required to exercise discretion when considering various factors such as cash flow expected to be received from each debtor with reference to the debt restructuring or compromising agreement, cost of receivables for which the Company pays, debtors’ capability to comply with the debt restructuring or compromising agreement, payment receipt schedule and overall economic conditions, etc. Changes in projected cash flow to be received as resulting from debtors’ inability to pay debts according to the agreement, debtors’ request for revision of the debt restructuring agreement or the Company’s termination of the debt restructuring agreement due to debtors’ inability to comply with the debt restructuring agreement will affect recognition of income of the Company during the year.

4.2
Recognition and write-off of assets and liabilities

In recognition and write-off of assets and liabilities, Management must exercise its discretion to see whether the Company has transferred or has been transferred risks and benefits in assets and liabilities based on the information to the best of my knowledge under the current circumstances.

4.3
Allowance for doubtful accounts of loans purchased

Allowance for doubtful accounts of loans purchased occurs from adjustment of loans purchased due to possible credit risk. Management uses allowance for doubtful accounts criteria based on those of BOT in conjunction with exercise of discretion in estimation of losses expected to occur when debtors have principal and interest payment problems by analyzing each debtor ’s status, possibility of default, collateral value and economic conditions .

4.4
Fair value of financial instruments

In estimation of fair value of financial instruments not traded on the market and those without quoted price in the active market, Management has to exercise discretion over assessment of fair value of the financial instruments by valuation techniques and models. Variables used in the model come from comparison of market variables taking into account credit risk, liquidity, relationship information and changes in the value of financial instruments in the long term. Changes in assumptions in relation to variables used in the calculation may affect fair value and disclosure of hierarchy of fair value.

(TRANSLATION)

27

4.5
Allowance for impairment of investment in securities

The Company sets aside allowance for impairment of investment in available-for-sale securities and general investment when there is any indication of impairment. To conclude whether the investment has an indication of impairment requires discretion of Management.

4.6
Allowance for impairment of properties for sale

The Company considers allowance for impairment of properties for sale when it finds out that the value expected to be recovered of properties for sale has decreased to be lower than book value. Management exercises discretion over estimation of losses from impairment by considering the latest estimated price and the type and characteristics of assets.

4.7
Calculation of depreciation

In calculation of depreciation of plant and equipment, Management needs to estimate the useful life and residual value after use of such plant and equipment and review of the useful life and residual value must be made if there are any changes.

Moreover, Management needs to review impairment of premises and equipment in each period and record losses from impairment if the value expected to be recovered is lower than the book value. In this regard, Management needs to exercise discretion over estimation of future income and expenses in relation to such assets.

4.8
Post-employment benefits according to benefit projects

Liabilities under post-employment benefit projects for employees are estimated on an actuarial basis which requires various assumptions for use in estimation, such as discount rate, future salary increment rate, mortality rate and employee turnover rate, etc.

4.9
Provisions for litigation cases

The Company has contingent liabilities from lawsuits filed by others for damages. Management thus needs to exercise discretion over assessment of lawsuit results. In case Management is assurance that no damages will be incurred, the Company will not recognize provisions for such case.
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4.10
Lease contracts

In considering whether a lease contract is an operating lease contract or a financial lease contract, Management exercises discretion over assessment of conditions and details of the contract to consider whether the Company has transferred or has been transferred risks and benefits of such leased asset .

5.
Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the annual net profit on the shareholders’ portion (excluding other comprehensive income) with the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued during the year.

6.
Financial Instruments

The Company’ s important financial instruments, as defined in TAS 107 : Disclosure and Presentation of Financial Instruments, consist of cash, cash at financial institutions, investment in securities, loans purchased, installment sale receivables, accrued income from auction sale and debt issued and borrowings. The Company is subject to risks related to the aforementioned financial instruments and has a policy on risk management as below :

6.1
Risk management

The Company implements its risk management that covers all key risks, which are divided into four categories consisting of strategic risk, operational risk, financial risk and compliance risk, so that it can determine approaches to or tools for efficient risk management, as follows:

6.1.1
Strategic risk

These are risks arising from unsuitable strategic plans, resulting from inconsistent adaptation of strategy with internal and external environment, which may adversely affect the achievement of organizational goals in accordance with strategic/operational plans set by the Company and impact its income, financial status, competitiveness and business sustainability.

6.1.2
Operational risk

These are risks of damage incurrence from insufficient corporate governance and internal controls, which may be related to internal functional processes, personnel, work systems or external events that affect the Company’s income and financial position.

(TRANSLATION)

29

6.1.3
Financial risk

a)
Liquidity risk

These are risks arising from the Company’s inability to pay debts and meet obligations when due, because of inability to timely convert assets into cash when it is due for debt payment or obtain sufficient funds to meet funding needs or ability to obtain funds but at the too high cost beyond the acceptable level. These risks may affect the Company’s income and financial position.

Tools for managing liquidity risks

The Company has established a policy for management of liquidity, control of liquidity risk limits/levels to acceptable levels and putting in place tools for monitoring and controlling liquidity risks by relevant management personnel and committees, i.e. Assets and Liabilities Management Committee and Risk Management Committee. The tools used for liquidity risk management include estimation of the cash inflows and outflows to assess the liquidity gap for various periods of time, analysis of key financial ratios and stress tests of financial liquidity.

Furthermore, the Company has laid down guidelines for the preparation of a contingency funding plan for both normal and emergency situations to ensure timely access to the funding source and adequate cash flow at an appropriate funding cost in the event of a liquidity crisis.

Maturity dates of financial tools from the dates in the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 are as below:
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Tools for managing liquidity risks (cont.)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	2018
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	At
	
	Up to
	
	More than
	
	Not
	
	

	Items
	
	call
	
	1 year
	
	1 - 10 years
	
	specified
	
	Total

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Financial assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash
	3.61
	-
	-
	-
	3.61

	Cash at financial institutions
	731.56
	300.24
	-
	-
	1,031.80

	Investment in securities
	-
	-
	-
	482.76
	482.76

	Loans purchased *
	76,631.00
	1,599.45
	3,488.54
	-
	81,718.99

	Installment sale receivables
	41.54
	691.11
	720.19
	-
	1,452.84

	Accrued income from auction sale
	-
	-
	-
	7,115.45
	7,115.45

	Financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	-
	19,045.33
	38,663.95
	-
	57,709.28

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	2017
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	At
	
	Up to
	
	More than
	
	Not
	
	

	Items
	
	call
	
	1 year
	
	1 - 10 years
	
	specified
	
	Total

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Financial assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash
	4.30
	-
	-
	-
	4.30

	Cash at financial institutions
	1,158.31
	0.20
	-
	-
	1,158.51

	Investment in securities
	-
	-
	-
	504.65
	504.65

	Loans purchased *
	76,332.12
	1,384.88
	2,112.17
	-
	79,829.17

	Installment sale receivables
	241.64
	456.82
	466.34
	-
	1,164.80

	Accrued income from auction sale
	-
	-
	-
	4,981.49
	4,981.49

	Financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	1,200.00
	18,734.44
	36,934.03
	-
	56,868.47
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Tools for managing liquidity risks (cont.)

Unit : Million Baht

2016

[image: image2.png]



At
Up to
More than
Not

Items
call
1 year
1 - 10 years
specified
Total
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Financial assets

Cash

Cash at financial institutions

Investment in securities

Loans purchased *

Installment sale receivables

Accrued income from auction sale



	3.26
	-
	-
	-
	3.26

	807.01
	800.49
	-
	-
	1,607.50

	-
	-
	-
	508.59
	508.59

	75,429.32
	890.28
	1,655.50
	-
	77,975.10

	344.21
	1,415.74
	638.99
	-
	2,398.94

	-
	-
	-
	3,026.04
	3,026.04


	Financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	1,000.00
	24,704.30
	24,624.81
	-
	50,329.11


*The amount due of loans purchased that have not undergone debt restructuring and those that are under debt restructuring but classified as Class 3 - Substandard, Class 4 - Doubtful and Class 5 - Doubtful of Loss is classified as at call. Meanwhile, the amount of loans purchased which have undergone debt restructuring and are classified as Class 1 - Pass and Class 2 - Special Mention is presented with reference to debt restructuring agreement. However, the amount to be received by the Company under the agreement is in accordance with the right to demand payment, which will be higher than or equal to the amount of loans purchased. The Company has thus presented the amount to be received at not exceeding the cost of the receivables.

b)  Credit risk

Credit risks for asset management companies (AMC) whose revenues do not arise from extending loan facilities to clients, but from management and disposal of NPLs/NPAs, are mainly asset quality risks.

Tools for managing asset quality risks

· The Company determines prices for NPLs/NPAs based on NPLs/NPAs related factors comprising debtor status/track record, indebtedness, quality of collateral security, quality of properties for sale, and such external environment as competition and economic conditions, etc., to estimate income from debt collection and disposal of such assets.
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Tools for managing asset quality risks (cont.)

· The Company manages debtors under debt restructuring agreements who may not be able to settle debts as agreed upon or under the conditions set forth. The Company considers/reviews the debt servicing capability of debtor with an aging system in place to give early warning before debtor’s default of payment. In case debtor in default of payment shall be subject to legal proceeding as specified. This aims to reduce risks associated with debtors who cannot perform their obligations under the debt restructuring agreements.
Possible maximum risk exposure

Maximum value of credit risks will come from a combination of book value of loans purchased and installment sale receivables, deducted by allowance for doubtful accounts and allowance for impairment loss as presented in the statement of financial position.

c)
Market risk

Market risks are risks arising from changes in market prices. The Company may be at risk of damage caused by changes in interest rates and securities prices which affect its investment position. In addition, as the Company’ s business focuses on management of NPLs/ NPAs, market risks also include risks arising from changes in market price of collateral assets of debtors.

1) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is risk incurred from changes in value of financial instruments both financial assets and liabilities, in line with changing trends of market interest rates, as below:

Financial assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rates as at December 31, 2018, 2017 and

2016 are as follows:

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	2018
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Items
	
	Floating
	
	Fixed interest
	No interest
	
	Total

	
	
	interest rates
	
	rates
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Financial assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash
	-
	-
	
	
	3.61
	3.61

	Cash at financial institutions
	669.71
	300.24
	
	
	61.85
	1,031.80

	Investment in securities
	-
	-
	
	
	482.76
	482.76

	Loans purchased
	7,531.32
	74,187.67
	
	
	-
	81,718.99

	Installment sale receivables
	1,258.67
	194.17
	
	
	-
	1,452.84

	Accrued income from auction sale
	-
	-
	
	
	7,115.45
	7,115.45

	Financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	16,675.70
	37,604.35
	
	
	3,429.23
	57,709.28


1) Interest rate risk (cont.)

Items
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Cash
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	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2017
	
	

	Floating
	Fixed interest
	No interest
	Total

	interest rates
	rates
	
	

	
	
	
	

	-
	-
	4.30
	4.30

	915.73
	0.20
	242.58
	1,158.51

	-
	-
	504.65
	504.65

	4,668.49
	75,160.68
	-
	79,829.17

	971.80
	193.00
	-
	1,164.80

	-
	-
	4,981.49
	4,981.49

	16,250.13
	37,772.64
	2,845.70
	56,868.47

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2016
	
	

	Floating
	Fixed interest
	No interest
	Total

	interest rates
	rates
	
	

	
	
	
	

	-
	-
	3.26
	3.26

	728.22
	800.49
	78.79
	1,607.50

	-
	-
	508.59
	508.59

	3,569.75
	74,405.35
	-
	77,975.10

	1,898.51
	202.09
	298.34
	2,398.94

	-
	-
	3,026.04
	3,026.04

	18,999.20
	28,168.21
	3,161.70
	50,329.11
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1) Interest rate risk (cont.)

Financial instruments with fixed interest rates and definite period of determining new interest rate or maturity date ( whichever is earlier) from the date shown in the statements of financial position are as follows:

Items

[image: image7.png]



Financial assets

Cash at financial institutions

Loans purchased *

Installment sale receivables

Financial liabilities

Debt issued and borrowings

Items

[image: image8.png]



Financial assets

Cash at financial institutions

Loans purchased *

Installment sale receivables

Financial liabilities

Debt issued and borrowings

Items

[image: image9.png]



Financial assets



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	2018
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Period of determining new interest rate or maturity date
	
	
	
	Interest rate

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Total
	
	

	At call
	0 - 3
	3 - 12
	1 - 5
	
	Over 5 years
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	percentage

	
	
	months
	
	months
	
	
	years
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	-
	300.24
	-
	-
	-
	300.24
	0.85 - 1.30

	74,187.67
	-
	-
	-
	-
	74,187.67
	-

	-
	-
	-
	194.17
	-
	194.17
	6.00 - 7.20

	-
	4,620.69
	5,091.46
	14,041.12
	13,851.08
	37,604.35
	2.03 - 4.30

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	2017
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Period of determining new interest rate or maturity date
	
	
	
	Interest rate

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Total
	
	

	At call
	0 - 3
	3 - 12
	1 - 5
	
	Over 5 years
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	percentage

	
	
	months
	
	months
	
	
	years
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	-
	0.20
	-
	-
	-
	0.20
	0.85

	75,160.68
	-
	-
	-
	-
	75,160.68
	-

	-
	-
	-
	-
	193.00
	193.00
	6.00

	-
	773.71
	8,751.08
	12,271.09
	15,976.76
	37,772.64
	1.00 - 3.92

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	2016
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Period of determining new interest rate or maturity date
	
	
	
	Interest rate

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Total
	
	

	At call
	0 - 3
	3 - 12
	1 - 5
	
	Over 5 years
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	percentage

	
	
	months
	
	months
	
	
	years
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	Cash at financial institutions
	-
	800.49
	-
	-
	-
	800.49
	0.85
	- 1.50

	Loans purchased *
	74,405.35
	-
	-
	-
	-
	74,405.35
	
	-

	Installment sale receivables
	-
	-
	-
	-
	202.09
	202.09
	6.00

	Financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	-
	2,597.82
	11,123.94
	13,348.18
	1,098.27
	28,168.21
	1.00
	- 3.79
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1)  Interest rate risk (cont.)

· The Company does not make any recognition of interest income from loans purchased without debt restructuring. Payment received from the debtor will be used to deduct principal debt in full. Difference of the amount received, which is higher, and the cost of loans purchased will be presented as gain on loans purchased.

In addition, the Company had financial assets/liabilities which generated income and expenses incurred. The average balances of which are calculated by averaging from interim balances of such financial assets and liabilities and average income and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 as follows:

	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Average
	
	
	
	Average rate

	
	
	
	Income/Expenses
	
	(percentage)

	
	balance
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	per year

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Income-generating financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash
	5.06
	-
	-

	Cash at financial institutions
	1,564.76
	10.33
	0.66

	Investment in securities
	431.64
	10.39
	2.41

	Loans purchased
	74,753.55
	6,295.17
	8.42

	Installment sale receivables
	659.77
	204.40
	30.98

	Expense-incurring financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	59,050.41
	1,769.41
	3.00

	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2017
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Average
	
	
	
	Average rate

	
	
	
	Income/Expenses
	
	(percentage)

	
	balance
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	per year

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Income-generating financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash
	5.62
	-
	-

	Cash at financial institutions
	2,327.25
	23.32
	1.00

	Investment in securities
	1,233.01
	57.58
	4.67

	Loans purchased
	70,571.39
	5,386.67
	7.63

	Installment sale receivables
	1,026.16
	289.10
	28.17

	Expense-incurring financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	55,873.88
	1,621.99
	2.90


1)  Interest rate risk (cont.)

Income-generating financial assets

Cash

Cash at financial institutions

Investment in securities

Loans purchased

Installment sale receivables

Expense-incurring financial liabilities

Debt issued and borrowings
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	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2016
	

	Average
	
	Average rate

	
	Income/Expenses
	(percentage)

	balance
	
	

	
	
	per year

	
	
	

	6.91
	-
	-

	901.03
	10.36
	1.15

	161.75
	109.13
	67.47

	61,336.91
	5,456.63
	8.90

	2,177.42
	732.74
	33.65

	44,136.01
	1,244.15
	2.82
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2) Risk from changes in market prices of equity instruments

It refers to risk arising from changes in prices of equity securities or equity shares which cause changes in value of equity instruments and may trigger fluctuations in income or value of the Company’s financial assets at present and in future.

However, investment in securities of the Company is mostly in equity securities or equity shares obtained from transfer of assets for debt settlement or those allowing debtors to exercise buyback rights, not securities in the Company’ s trading portfolio. Even though securities prices change in line with market prices in each period, the Company has no policy to hold such securities for profit speculation. It would gradually dispose of such securities with criteria and conditions in place to appropriately dispose of the securities in each period, and would follow up to recognize marked-to-market value of investment in securities at the end of each accounting period.

3) Risk from changes in market prices of collateral assets

Risk from changes in market prices of collateral assets refers to risk arising from changes in market prices of collateral assets of debtors. Such risk is incurred from changes in value of assets in line with market conditions leading to income increase or decrease. The Company considers appraisal prices set by BOT and reviews valuation prices of collaterals for NPLs every three years or when relevant situations change significantly. And, allowance for doubtful accounts of loans purchased are adequately set aside to accommodate any possible damage from depreciation/impairment of collaterals for NPLs.

(TRANSLATION)

37

6.1.4
Compliance risk

These are risks arising from failure to comply with the laws, rules, regulations, standards, orders and guidelines applicable to the Company’ s transactions, which may cause financial damage or lead to legal action or damage to the Company’s reputation and image.

	7.
	Additional Information
	
	
	
	
	

	7.1
	Cash
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	
	2017
	2016

	
	Cash
	
	3.61
	
	4.30
	
	3.26

	
	Total
	
	3.61
	
	4.30
	
	3.26

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, cash and cash equivalent items disclosed in the statements of cash flows were as below:

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	
	Cash
	3.61
	4.30
	3.26

	
	Deposits in transit
	9.89
	3.37
	5.06

	
	Deposits at domestic banks
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Current and saving deposits
	1,021.61
	1,154.77
	801.62

	
	Fixed deposits
	0.20
	0.20
	800.20

	
	Total cash and deposits at banks
	1,035.31
	1,162.64
	1,610.14

	
	Less   Deposits under guarantee obligation
	(3.74)
	(3.78)
	(3.78)

	
	Cash and cash equivalent items
	1,031.57
	1,158.86
	1,606.36

	7.2
	Cash at financial institutions
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	
	2017
	
	2016

	
	Deposits in transit
	9.89
	3.37
	5.06

	
	Deposits at domestic banks
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Current and savings deposits
	1,021.61
	1,154.77
	801.62

	
	Fixed deposits
	0.20
	0.20
	800.20

	
	Accrued interest receivables
	0.10
	0.17
	0.62

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total deposits at domestic banks
	1,021.91
	1,155.14
	1,602.44

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total
	1,031.80
	1,158.51
	1,607.50
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	7.2  Cash at financial institutions (cont.)
	
	
	

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	

	Domestic
	At call
	Tenor
	Total

	
	
	
	

	Commercial banks
	718.06
	300.20
	1,018.26

	Specialized financial institutions
	3.55
	-
	3.55

	Total deposits
	721.61
	300.20
	1,021.81

	Accrued interest receivables
	0.06
	0.04
	0.10

	Total deposits at domestic banks
	721.67
	300.24
	1,021.91

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2017
	

	Domestic
	At call
	Tenor
	Total

	
	
	
	

	Commercial banks
	1,147.53
	0.20
	1,147.73

	Specialized financial institutions
	7.24
	-
	7.24

	Total deposits
	1,154.77
	0.20
	1,154.97

	Accrued interest receivables
	0.17
	-
	0.17

	Total deposits at domestic banks
	1,154.94
	0.20
	1,155.14

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2016
	

	Domestic
	At call
	Tenor
	Total

	
	
	
	

	Commercial banks
	798.00
	800.20
	1,598.20

	Specialized financial institutions
	3.62
	-
	3.62

	Total deposits
	801.62
	800.20
	1,601.82

	Accrued interest receivables
	0.33
	0.29
	0.62

	Total deposits at domestic banks
	801.95
	800.49
	1,602.44
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As at December 31, 2018, savings and fixed deposits carried interest rates of between 0. 125% and 1. 30% per annum (December 31, 2017: from 0.125% to 1.00% per annum, and December 31, 2016: from 0.125% to 1.50% per annum). As at December 31, 2018, the Company had savings deposits of 3.74 million Baht for electricity use guarantee (December 31, 2017: 3.78 million Baht, and December 31, 2016: 3.78 million Baht).
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	7.3
	Investment in securities - net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	7.3.1  Classified by type of investments
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	Cost/
	
	
	
	Cost/
	
	
	
	Cost/
	
	

	
	
	
	Amortized
	
	Fair value
	
	Amortized
	
	Fair value
	
	Amortized
	
	Fair value

	
	
	
	cost
	
	
	
	cost
	
	
	
	cost
	
	

	Available-for-sale securities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Domestic marketable equity securities
	342.58
	87.00
	339.84
	107.91
	340.10
	109.83

	Warrant
	-
	1.15
	-
	1.23
	-
	2.05

	Less
	Revaluation of investment in securities
	(30.06)
	-
	(30.06)
	-
	(30.06)
	-

	Less
	Revaluation allowance
	(58.02)
	-
	(46.25)
	-
	(43.77)
	-

	Less
	Allowance for impairment
	(166.35)
	-
	(154.39)
	-
	(154.39)
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	
	88.15
	88.15
	109.14
	109.14
	111.88
	111.88

	Held-to-maturity debt securities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Private sector securities
	49.70
	
	
	49.70
	
	
	49.70
	
	

	Less
	Revaluation of investment in securities
	(49.70)
	
	
	(49.70)
	
	
	(49.70)
	
	

	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	-
	
	
	-
	
	
	-
	
	

	General investment
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Non-marketable equity securities
	715.37
	
	
	715.37
	
	
	715.12
	
	

	Less
	Revaluation of investment in securities
	(545.13)
	
	
	(520.49)
	
	
	(516.57)
	
	

	Less
	Allowance for impairment
	(164.45)
	
	
	(164.45)
	
	
	(164.19)
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	
	5.79
	
	
	30.43
	
	
	34.36
	
	

	Total investment in securities - net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	93.94
	
	
	
	139.57
	
	
	
	146.24
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


In 2017, the Company transferred investment in available-for-sale securities of 0.3 million Baht to general investment due to delisting of such securities from the stock exchange, and allowance for impairment of such securities had duly been set aside in full.
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7.3.2
Classified by remaining maturity period

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, investment in debt securities classified by maturity period was as follows:

	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018, 2017 and 2016
	

	
	At call
	Not over
	1 - 5
	Over 5
	Total

	
	
	1 year
	years
	years
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Held-to-maturity debt securities
	
	
	
	
	

	Private debt securities
	49.70
	-
	-
	-
	49.70

	Less  Revaluation of investment in securities
	(49.70)
	-
	-
	-
	(49.70)

	Total debt securities
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
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As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the above investment in debt securities was transfer of debentures of a debtor from Bangkok Commerce Plc. upon which the Central Bankruptcy Court issued a receivership order in 2002. In 2008, The Information showed that the debtor had a bankruptcy status. Thus, the net book value of investment in such company was equal to zero as from the acquisition date.

7.3.3
Investment in securities in which the Company has 10% or more shareholding

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, investment in securities in which the Company has held 10% or more of the total shares sold, but not regarded as investment in subsidiaries or associated companies, can be classified by industrial sector as follows:

	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Agriculture and mining
	13.13
	13.13
	13.13

	Manufacturing and commerce
	63.19
	63.19
	63.19

	Real estate and construction
	10.02
	10.02
	10.02

	Public utility and service
	159.42
	159.42
	159.42

	Financial intermediary
	12.23
	12.23
	12.23

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	257.99
	257.99
	257.99
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7.3.3
Investment in securities in which the Company has 10% or more shareholding (cont.)

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, domestic non-marketable debt securities which were classified as general investment of 715.37 million Baht, 715.37 million Baht and 715.12 million Baht respectively included investment in ordinary shares of Rojthip Co., Ltd. at the cost of 0.95 million Baht (equal to 99.94% shareholding by the Company). As the Company had no controlling power, either directly or indirectly, such investment was classified as general investment. Moreover, with Rojthip Co., Ltd. having investment in another 20 entities, the Company had total direct and indirect investment in 21 entities. However, as Rojthip Co., Ltd. and most companies in its group were under liquidation process, the Company set aside allowance for impairment of investment in full.

7.3.4
Capital surplus (deficit) from changes in investment value

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, capital surplus (deficit) from changes in investment value and movements of capital surplus (deficit) from changes in investment value were as below:

	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Capital surplus from changes in investment value
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Available-for-sale investment - equity securities
	27.92
	29.86
	20.47

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total capital surplus from changes in investment value
	27.92
	29.86
	20.47

	Capital deficit from changes in investment value
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Available-for-sale investment - equity securities
	(85.94)
	(76.11)
	(64.24)

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total capital deficit from changes in investment value
	(85.94)
	(76.11)
	(64.24)

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total capital deficit from changes in investment value - net
	(58.02)
	(46.25)
	(43.77)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	


Changes in capital surplus (deficit) from changes in investment value for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Capital surplus (deficit) from changes in investment value
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Beginning balance of the year
	(46.25)
	(43.77)
	(47.52)

	Gain (loss) on valuation of investment during the year
	(11.77)
	(2.48)
	3.75

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Ending balance of the year
	(58.02)
	(46.25)
	(43.77)
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7.4
Loans purchased

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Loans purchased
	81,718.99
	79,829.17
	77,975.10

	Less  Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(6,285.05)
	(6,943.39)
	(8,088.17)

	Loans purchased - net
	75,433.94
	72,885.78
	69,886.93
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Changes in loans purchased for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Loans purchased brought forward to beginning period
	79,913.98
	78,080.21
	71,273.21

	Add
	Acceptance of additional purchase
	10,971.26
	10,252.63
	12,636.07

	Less
	Receipt of debt payment and adjustment - net
	(9,081.44)
	(8,418.86)
	(5,829.07)

	Balance of loans purchased before adjustment
	81,803.80
	79,913.98
	78,080.21

	Less
	Revaluation of loans purchased
	(84.81)
	(84.81)
	(105.11)

	Balance of loans purchased
	81,718.99
	79,829.17
	77,975.10

	Less
	Allowance for doubtful accounts
	(6,285.05)
	(6,943.39)
	(8,088.17)

	Loans purchased - net
	75,433.94
	72,885.78
	69,886.93
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During the years 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company purchased right of claim for loans purchased from financial institutions in a total amount of 10,971.26 million Baht, 10,252.63 million Baht and 12,636.07 million Baht respectively.

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had total loans purchased - net of 75,433.94 million Baht, 72,885.78 million Baht and 69,886.93 million Baht respectively. Meanwhile, the Company had the right of claim from debtors as specified under the agreements in a total amount of 454,965.71 million Baht, 442,052.55 million Baht and 439,486.43 million Baht respectively.
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7.4.1
Allowance for doubtful accounts

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, allowance for doubtful accounts of loans purchased was as below:

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Balance brought forward to beginning of year
	6,943.39
	8,088.17
	8,180.81

	Write-off of bad debts
	(496.15)
	(119.85)
	(113.71)

	Addition/Reversal of allowance in this period
	(162.19)
	(1,024.93)
	21.07

	Total
	6,285.05
	6,943.39
	8,088.17
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Reconciliation of allowance for doubtful accounts, classified by class of debts, was as below:

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	2018
	
	
	
	

	
	Mininum Percentage according to BOT Criteria
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pass
	
	Special
	
	Substandard
	
	Doubtful
	
	Doubtful
	
	Total

	
	
	
	mention
	
	
	
	
	
	of loss
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Beginning balance of the year
	173.23
	14.09
	68.25
	6.05
	6,681.77
	6,943.39

	Write-off of bad debts
	-
	-
	-
	-
	(496.15)
	(496.15)

	Increase (Decrease) during the year
	11.12
	26.80
	72.51
	(5.50)
	(267.12)
	(162.19)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Ending balance of the year
	184.35
	40.89
	140.76
	0.55
	5,918.50
	6,285.05

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	2017
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Mininum Percentage according to BOT Criteria
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pass
	
	Special
	
	Substandard
	
	Doubtful
	
	Doubtful
	
	Total

	
	
	
	mention
	
	
	
	
	
	of loss
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Beginning balance of the year
	156.26
	29.96
	15.55
	0.65
	7,885.75
	8,088.17

	Write-off of bad debts
	-
	-
	-
	-
	(119.85)
	(119.85)

	Increase (Decrease) during the year
	16.97
	(15.87)
	52.70
	5.40
	(1,084.13)
	(1,024.93)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Ending balance of the year
	173.23
	14.09
	68.25
	6.05
	6,681.77
	6,943.39
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7.4.1
Allowance for doubtful accounts (cont.)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	2016
	
	
	
	

	
	Mininum Percentage according to BOT Criteria
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pass
	
	Special
	
	Substandard
	
	Doubtful
	
	Doubtful
	
	Total

	
	
	
	mention
	
	
	
	
	
	of loss
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Beginning balance of the year
	171.68
	31.41
	161.16
	18.67
	7,797.89
	8,180.81

	Write-off of bad debts
	-
	-
	-
	-
	(113.71)
	(113.71)

	Increase (Decrease) during the year
	(15.42)
	(1.45)
	(145.61)
	(18.02)
	201.57
	21.07

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Ending balance of the year
	156.26
	29.96
	15.55
	0.65
	7,885.75
	8,088.17

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


7.4.2
Classified by currency and domicile of debtors

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the entire amount of loans purchased was loans purchased from other financial institutions. All debtors were debtors in baht currency and having domicile both domestically and abroad, details of which were as follows:

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Domestic
	81,694.66
	79,804.84
	77,950.77

	Overseas
	24.33
	24.33
	24.33

	Total
	81,718.99
	79,829.17
	77,975.10
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7.4.3
Classified by type of debtors and debtor classification

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, loans purchased classified by type and classification were as below:

	
	Pass
	Special

	
	
	mention

	
	
	

	Juristic persons
	1,062.39
	372.38

	Individuals
	2,915.29
	737.93

	Total
	3,977.68
	1,110.31
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	Pass
	Special

	
	
	mention

	
	
	

	Juristic persons
	741.18
	345.65

	Individuals
	1,989.03
	421.19

	Total
	2,730.21
	766.84
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	Pass
	Special

	
	
	mention

	
	
	

	Juristic persons
	567.54
	226.99

	Individuals
	1,431.29
	319.95

	Total
	1,998.83
	546.94


[image: image24.png]


[image: image25.png]


[image: image26.png]






	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	
	

	Substandard
	Doubtful
	Doubtful of loss
	Total

	1,209.40
	1.39
	31,593.75
	34,239.31

	1,215.25
	15.98
	42,595.23
	47,479.68

	2,424.65
	17.37
	74,188.98
	81,718.99

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2017
	
	

	Substandard
	Doubtful
	Doubtful of loss
	Total

	332.24
	35.24
	32,746.06
	34,200.37

	747.83
	50.52
	42,420.23
	45,628.80

	1,080.07
	85.76
	75,166.29
	79,829.17

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2016
	
	

	Substandard
	Doubtful
	Doubtful of loss
	Total

	601.08
	24.26
	34,888.62
	36,308.49

	274.57
	45.39
	39,595.41
	41,666.61

	875.65
	69.65
	74,484.03
	77,975.10
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7.4.4
Debt restructuring

During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company entered into debt restructuring agreements of loans purchased in various forms with details as below:

2018
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Unit : Million Baht

Debt restructuring form

Change in debt payment conditions

Transfer of assets and/or

change in debt payment conditions



	Number
	Balance
	Balance after
	Type of assets to be

	
	before debt
	debt
	received from transfer

	of debtors
	
	
	

	
	restructuring
	restructuring
	under agreements

	
	
	
	

	5,495
	11,831.00
	11,831.00
	

	
	
	
	Empty land

	86
	325.91
	325.91
	Machinery

	
	
	
	Ownership of

	
	
	
	condominium units

	
	
	
	Land and constructions
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Value of assets to

be received from

transfer under

agreements
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73.20

1.83

13.71

298.40
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	Total
	5,581
	12,156.91
	12,156.91


[image: image33.png]



	
	
	
	
	2017

	
	Number
	Balance
	Balance after
	Type of assets to be

	Debt restructuring form
	
	before debt
	debt
	received from transfer

	
	of debtors
	
	
	

	
	
	restructuring
	restructuring
	under agreements
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387.14

[image: image36.png]


[image: image37.png]



Unit : Million Baht

Value of assets to

be received from

transfer under

agreements
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	Change in debt payment conditions
	3,130
	5,300.96
	5,300.96
	
	

	Transfer of assets and/or
	
	
	
	Empty land
	113.98

	change in debt payment conditions
	90
	205.37
	205.37
	Buildings and
	

	
	
	
	
	constructions
	43.21

	
	
	
	
	Land and constructions
	213.37

	Total
	3,220
	5,506.33
	5,506.33
	
	370.56
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7.4.4
Debt restructuring (cont.)

	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	2016
	

	
	
	Balance
	Balance after
	Type of assets to be
	Value of assets to

	
	Number
	
	
	
	be received from

	Debt restructuring form
	
	before debt
	debt
	received from transfer
	

	
	of debtors
	
	
	
	transfer under

	
	
	restructuring
	restructuring
	under agreements
	

	
	
	
	
	
	agreements

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Change in debt payment conditions
	2,766
	5,324.54
	5,324.54
	
	

	Transfer of assets and/or
	
	
	
	Empty land
	117.00

	change in debt payment conditions
	90
	122.25
	122.25
	Buildings and
	

	
	
	
	
	constructions
	6.40

	
	
	
	
	Land and constructions
	167.88

	Total
	2,856
	5,446.79
	5,446.79
	
	291.28
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Loans purchased acquired from transfer under debt restructuring agreements during the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 with contractual term counting from remaining tenor of debts were as follows:

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	
	
	2017
	
	
	2016

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Number of
	
	
	Balance after
	
	Number of
	
	Balance after
	
	Number of
	
	Balance after

	Period
	
	
	
	debt
	
	
	
	debt
	
	
	
	debt

	
	debtors
	
	
	
	
	debtors
	
	
	
	debtors
	
	

	
	
	
	
	restructuring
	
	
	
	restructuring
	
	
	
	restructuring

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	- Default after agreement
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	execution/termination
	1,178
	6,275.57
	446
	986.72
	367
	784.79

	- Payment due
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Less than 5 years
	3,440
	4,927.01
	2,582
	4,288.80
	2,461
	3,969.92

	5 - 10 years
	829
	805.68
	192
	230.81
	28
	692.08

	More than 10 years
	134
	148.65
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	5,581
	12,156.91
	3,220
	5,506.33
	2,856
	5,446.79
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7.4.4
Debt restructuring (cont.)

Debtors with debt restructuring agreements for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 classified by installment payment tenor according to debt restructuring agreements were as follows:

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	
	2017
	
	2016

	Installment payment tenor
	Number of
	Balance after
	Number of
	Balance after
	Number of
	Balance after

	according to debt
	
	debt
	
	debt
	
	debt

	
	debtors
	
	debtors
	
	debtors
	

	restructuring agreement
	
	restructuring
	
	restructuring
	
	restructuring

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Less than 5 years
	3,445
	9,484.10
	2,643
	4,683.16
	2,506
	4,216.34

	5 - 10 years
	1,773
	2,275.57
	532
	769.16
	350
	1,230.45

	More than 10 years
	363
	397.24
	45
	54.01
	-
	-

	Total
	5,581
	12,156.91
	3,220
	5,506.33
	2,856
	5,446.79
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Information for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 regarding loans purchased with debt restructuring was as follows:

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Interest income from loans purchased
	1,856.82
	1,877.52
	1,232.30

	Gain on loans purchased
	1,711.95
	1,690.55
	3,103.79

	Cash received from loans purchased
	6,385.77
	6,981.30
	6,946.24

	Assets transferred from loans purchased
	349.34
	329.22
	348.53

	Revaluation of properties for sale obtained from transfer
	110.38
	182.30
	271.85
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7.4.4
Debt restructuring (cont.)

The Company had outstanding balance of loans purchased after debt restructuring as at end of year as follows:

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	Total Debtors
	

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Number of debtors (debtors)
	86,710
	84,156
	76,033

	Outstanding balance of loans purchased (Million Baht)
	81,718.99
	79,829.17
	77,975.10

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	Debtors with Debt Restructuring

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Number of debtors (debtors)
	5,672
	3,379
	2,300

	Outstanding balance of loans purchased (Million Baht)
	7,531.32
	4,668.49
	3,569.75
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As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had no outstanding obligations agreed as additional loans for loans purchased after debt restructuring.

7.4.5
Classified by classification type

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had loans purchased that were classified debtors and relevant allowance for doubtful accounts based on criteria in notifications of BOT as follows:

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	2018
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Loans
	
	Loans after
	
	Rate applicable for
	
	Allowance for

	
	
	
	deduction of
	
	allowance for
	
	

	
	purchased
	
	
	
	
	
	doubtful accounts

	
	
	
	collateral
	
	doubtful accounts
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Pass *
	3,977.68
	179.88
	100.00
	184.35

	Special mention *
	1,110.31
	40.54
	100.00
	40.89

	Substandard
	2,424.65
	140.76
	100.00
	140.76

	Doubtful
	17.37
	0.55
	100.00
	0.55

	Doubtful of loss
	74,188.98
	5,918.50
	100.00
	5,918.50

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	81,718.99
	6,280.23
	
	
	6,285.05
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	7.4.5  Classified by classification type (cont.)
	
	

	
	
	
	2017

	
	Loans
	Loans after
	Rate applicable for

	
	
	deduction of
	allowance for

	
	purchased
	
	

	
	
	collateral
	doubtful accounts

	
	
	
	

	Pass *
	2,730.21
	167.14
	100.00

	Special mention *
	766.84
	13.92
	100.00

	Substandard
	1,080.07
	68.25
	100.00

	Doubtful
	85.76
	6.05
	100.00

	Doubtful of loss
	75,166.29
	6,681.77
	100.00

	Total
	79,829.17
	6,937.13
	

	
	
	
	2016

	
	Loans
	Loans after
	Rate applicable for

	
	
	deduction of
	allowance for

	
	purchased
	
	

	
	
	collateral
	doubtful accounts

	
	
	
	

	Pass *
	1,998.83
	124.94
	100.00

	Special mention *
	546.94
	21.54
	100.00

	Substandard
	875.65
	15.55
	100.00

	Doubtful
	69.65
	0.65
	100.00

	Doubtful of loss
	74,484.03
	7,885.75
	100.00

	Total
	77,975.10
	8,048.43
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Unit : Million Baht

Allowance for doubtful accounts
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173.23

14.09

68.25

6.05

6,681.77
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6,943.39
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Unit : Million Baht

Allowance for doubtful accounts
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156.26

29.96

15.55

0.65

7,885.75
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8,088.17
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· Allowance for doubtful accounts is calculated on the basis as mentioned in Note 3. 5 which takes into account the present value of discounted cash flow from debt restructuring expected to be received in future.
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7.4.6
Outstanding loans purchased on accrual basis and collateral value

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, outstanding balance of loans purchased and collateral value calculated based on the latest valuation prices after discount according to BOT’s criteria was as follows:

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Debt amounts
	
	
	
	Collateral value
	
	Collateral value

	
	under original
	
	Loans purchased
	before discount
	
	after discount

	
	agreements (right
	
	(equity obligations)
	according to
	
	according to

	
	obligations)
	
	
	
	BOT's criteria *
	
	BOT's criteria **

	Loans purchased
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	with debt restructuring
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	- 0 - 1 month overdue
	6,197.53
	3,977.68
	
	12,977.11
	11,680.47

	- Overdue over 1 - 3 months
	2,127.53
	1,110.31
	
	3,641.25
	3,277.21

	- Overdue over 3 - 6 months
	4,229.15
	2,424.65
	
	6,424.98
	4,056.08

	- Overdue over 6 months
	61.71
	18.68
	
	85.48
	51.41

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	12,615.92
	7,531.32
	
	23,128.82
	19,065.17

	Loans purchased
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	without debt restructuring
	442,349.79
	
	74,187.67
	
	169,065.50
	
	117,311.58

	Total
	442,349.79
	74,187.67
	
	169,065.50
	117,311.58

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grand total
	454,965.71
	81,718.99
	
	192,194.32
	136,376.75

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


· This is calculated based on the appraisal price in accordance with the latest resolution of the committee on the appraisal price ( notwithstanding the price having already been appraised for more than 3 years) . If collateral has been put up for auction sale and has already been purchased, the bidding price less an expense estimate will be placed. Also, the collateral value will be based on the appraisal price before the debt on accrual basis between the Company and a debtor is considered and before the mortgage value is considered.

· * This is calculated by the collateral value less discount according to BOT’ s criteria, and the collateral value shall not be used provided that the appraisal has occurred longer than 3 years from the appraisal price was approved. If collateral has been put up for auction sale and has already been purchased, the bidding price less an expense estimate will be placed. Also, the collateral value will be based on the appraisal price before the debt on accrual basis between the Company and a debtor is considered and before the mortgage value is considered.
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7.4.6
Outstanding loans purchased on accrual basis and collateral value (cont.)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2017
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Debt amounts
	
	
	
	Collateral value
	
	Collateral value

	
	under original
	
	Loans purchased
	before discount
	
	after discount

	
	agreements (right
	
	(equity obligations)
	according to
	
	according to

	
	obligations)
	
	
	
	BOT's criteria *
	
	BOT's criteria **

	Loans purchased
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	with debt restructuring
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	- 0 - 1 month overdue
	4,165.66
	2,730.21
	
	9,120.62
	8,195.36

	- Overdue over 1 - 3 months
	1,115.53
	766.84
	
	2,232.56
	2,008.59

	- Overdue over 3 - 6 months
	4,154.15
	1,080.07
	
	4,039.32
	2,540.91

	- Overdue over 6 months
	251.00
	91.37
	
	250.39
	156.74

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	9,686.34
	4,668.49
	
	15,642.89
	12,901.60

	Loans purchased
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	without debt restructuring
	432,366.21
	
	75,160.68
	
	176,344.83
	
	121,033.61

	Total
	432,366.21
	75,160.68
	
	176,344.83
	121,033.61

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grand total
	442,052.55
	79,829.17
	
	191,987.72
	133,935.21

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


· This is calculated based on the appraisal price in accordance with the latest resolution of the committee on the appraisal price ( notwithstanding the price having already been appraised for more than 3 years) . If collateral has been put up for auction sale and has already been purchased, the bidding price less an expense estimate will be placed. Also, the collateral value will be based on the appraisal price before the debt on accrual basis between the Company and a debtor is considered and before the mortgage value is considered.

· * This is calculated by the collateral value less discount according to BOT’ s criteria, and the collateral value shall not be used provided that the appraisal has occurred longer than 3 years from the appraisal price was approved. If collateral has been put up for auction sale and has already been purchased, the bidding price less an expense estimate will be placed. Also, the collateral value will be based on the appraisal price before the debt on accrual basis between the Company and a debtor is considered and before the mortgage value is considered.
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7.4.6
Outstanding loans purchased on accrual basis and collateral value (cont.)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2016
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Debt amounts
	
	
	
	Collateral value
	
	Collateral value

	
	under original
	
	Loans purchased
	before discount
	
	after discount

	
	agreements (right
	
	(equity obligations)
	according to
	
	according to

	
	obligations)
	
	
	
	BOT's criteria *
	
	BOT's criteria **

	Loans purchased
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	with debt restructuring
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	- 0 - 1 month overdue
	3,668.80
	1,998.83
	
	7,336.83
	6,574.32

	- Overdue over 1 - 3 months
	784.44
	546.94
	
	1,670.58
	1,502.81

	- Overdue over 3 - 6 months
	3,671.83
	875.65
	
	3,111.80
	1,968.35

	- Overdue over 6 months
	617.23
	148.33
	
	509.39
	318.78

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	8,742.30
	3,569.75
	
	12,628.60
	10,364.26

	Loans purchased
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	without debt restructuring
	430,744.13
	
	74,405.35
	
	175,480.67
	
	118,959.43

	Total
	430,744.13
	74,405.35
	
	175,480.67
	118,959.43

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grand total
	439,486.43
	77,975.10
	
	188,109.27
	129,323.69

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


· This is calculated based on the appraisal price in accordance with the latest resolution of the committee on the appraisal price ( notwithstanding the price having already been appraised for more than 3 years) . If collateral has been put up for auction sale and has already been purchased, the bidding price less an expense estimate will be placed. Also, the collateral value will be based on the appraisal price before the debt on accrual basis between the Company and a debtor is considered and before the mortgage value is considered.

· * This is calculated by the collateral value less discount according to BOT’ s criteria, and the collateral value shall not be used provided that the appraisal has occurred longer than 3 years from the appraisal price was approved. If collateral has been put up for auction sale and has already been purchased, the bidding price less an expense estimate will be placed. Also, the collateral value will be based on the appraisal price before the debt on accrual basis between the Company and a debtor is considered and before the mortgage value is considered.
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7.5
Installment sale receivables

Beginning balance of the year

Add
Additional items during the year

Less
Received during the year

Less
Sale cancellation

Ending balance of the year

Less
Deferred gross margin from installment sale receivables

Less
Allowance for doubtful accounts - installment sale receivables

Installment sale receivables - net



2018
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1,164.80

670.03

(366.41)

(15.58)
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1,452.84

(742.33)

(2.21)
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708.30

[image: image67.png]


[image: image68.png]






2017
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2,398.94

103.09

(1,018.61)

(318.62)
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1,164.80

(523.85)

-
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640.95
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Unit : Million Baht

2016
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3,054.12

449.46

(1,080.43)

(24.21)
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2,398.94

(836.93)

-
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1,562.01
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In 2017, the Company canceled one large installment sale receivable in the amount of 296.60 million Baht and recognized the amount of payment received from such receivable as other income.

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, installment sale receivables classified by overdue period were as below:

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Overdue period
	
	
	

	Not overdue
	797.30
	817.18
	1,868.51

	Overdue 1 - 30 days
	413.24
	49.92
	154.09

	Overdue 31 - 90 days
	200.76
	56.06
	32.13

	Overdue 91 - 180 days
	30.48
	21.24
	31.69

	Overdue 181 days - 12 months
	4.66
	218.96
	10.04

	Overdue for more than 12 months
	6.40
	1.44
	302.48

	Total
	1,452.84
	1,164.80
	2,398.94
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7.5.1
Debt restructuring

During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company entered into debt restructuring agreements for installment sale receivables in various forms with details as below :

Debt restructuring form

Change in debt payment conditions Total

Debt restructuring form

Change in debt payment conditions Total

Debt restructuring form

Change in debt payment conditions Total



	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	

	Number of
	Balance before debt
	Balance after debt

	debtors
	restructuring
	restructuring

	54
	581.67
	581.67

	54
	581.67
	581.67

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2017
	

	Number of
	Balance before debt
	Balance after debt

	debtors
	restructuring
	restructuring

	51
	1,285.67
	1,285.67

	51
	1,285.67
	1,285.67

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2016
	

	Number of
	Balance before debt
	Balance after debt

	debtors
	restructuring
	restructuring

	28
	2,244.36
	2,244.36

	28
	2,244.36
	2,244.36
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7.5.1
Debt restructuring (cont.)

Installment sale receivables with debt restructuring agreements during the year s 2018, 2017 and 2016 with contractual term counting from remaining tenor of debts were as follows:

	
	
	2018
	
	2017
	

	
	Number
	Balance after
	Number
	Balance after
	Number

	
	of debtors
	debt restructuring
	of debtors
	debt restructuring
	of debtors

	- Account closed
	14
	1.46
	13
	658.83
	5

	- Payment due
	
	
	
	
	

	Less than 5 years
	33
	578.28
	33
	623.57
	20

	5-10 years
	7
	1.93
	5
	3.27
	3

	Total
	54
	581.67
	51
	1,285.67
	28
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Unit : Million Baht

2016
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Balance after

debt restructuring


468.27

1,502.90

273.19


2,244.36


Installment sale receivables with debt restructuring for the years 2018, 2017 and 2016 were classified by installment payment period under the debt restructuring agreements as follows:

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	
	2017
	
	2016

	
	Number
	Balance after
	Number
	Balance after
	Number
	Balance after

	
	of debtors
	debt restructuring
	of debtors
	debt restructuring
	of debtors
	debt restructuring

	Installment payment tenor
	
	
	
	
	
	

	according to debt restructuring
	
	
	
	
	
	

	agreement
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Less than 5 years
	47
	579.74
	43
	1,281.54
	24
	1,970.75

	5 - 10 years
	7
	1.93
	8
	4.13
	4
	273.61

	Total
	54
	581.67
	51
	1,285.67
	28
	2,244.36



Data for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 regarding installment sale receivables with debt restructuring was as follows:

	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Interest income from installment sale receivables
	64.03
	79.80
	123.93

	Gain on installment sales
	14.28
	151.19
	505.39

	Cash received from installment sale receivables
	200.26
	1,009.92
	1,207.03
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7.5.1
Debt restructuring (cont.)

The Company had remaining installment sale receivables after debt restructuring at end of year as follows:

	
	
	Total debtors
	

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Number of debtors (debtors)
	1,734
	1,398
	1,407

	Outstanding balance of installment sale receivables (million Baht)
	1,452.84
	1,164.80
	2,398.94

	
	Debtors with debt restructuring
	

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Number of debtors (debtors)
	76
	74
	70

	Outstanding balance of installment sale receivables (million Baht)
	849.57
	654.52
	1,798.24



7.6
Properties for sale - net

Properties for sale consisted of immovable and movable properties acquired from debt settlement by debtors and purchased from asset management companies and financial institutions, as follows:

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	2018
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	Bid from
	
	Transfer of properties
	
	Branches not in
	
	
	

	
	
	
	financial
	
	for debt repayment/
	
	
	
	
	Total

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	operation
	
	
	

	
	
	
	institutions
	
	Bid from debtors
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	7.6.1
	Immovable properties
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Beginning balance
	5,391.46
	17,475.17
	-
	22,866.63

	
	
	Increase
	1,117.06
	5,914.09
	25.57
	7,056.72

	
	
	Decrease
	(851.75)
	(2,395.18)
	-
	(3,246.93)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ending balance
	5,656.77
	20,994.08
	25.57
	26,676.42

	7.6.2
	Movable properties
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Beginning balance
	3.97
	290.39
	-
	294.36

	
	
	Increase
	-
	53.15
	-
	53.15

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ending balance
	3.97
	343.54
	-
	347.51

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total ending balance
	5,660.74
	21,337.62
	25.57
	27,023.93

	
	Less
	Revaluation of properties for sale
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(5,905.55)

	
	Less
	Allowance for impairment of properties for sale
	
	
	
	
	(522.56)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Properties for sale - net
	
	
	
	
	
	20,595.82
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	7.6
	Properties for sale - net (cont.)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	2017
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Bid from financial
	
	
	Transfer of properties for
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	debt repayment/Bid from
	
	
	Total

	
	
	
	
	institutions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	debtors
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	7.6.1
	Immovable properties
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Beginning balance
	5,601.98
	13,621.28
	19,223.26

	
	
	Increase
	269.64
	5,101.14
	5,370.78

	
	
	Decrease
	(480.16)
	(1,247.25)
	(1,727.41)

	
	Ending balance
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	5,391.46
	
	
	17,475.17
	
	22,866.63

	7.6.2
	Movable properties
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Beginning balance
	3.97
	133.39
	137.36

	
	
	Increase
	-
	157.00
	157.00

	
	Ending balance
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	3.97
	
	
	290.39
	
	294.36

	
	Total ending balance
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	5,395.43
	
	
	17,765.56
	
	23,160.99

	
	Less
	Revaluation of properties for sale
	
	
	
	
	
	(4,882.75)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Less
	Allowance for impairment of properties for sale
	
	
	
	(543.06)

	
	Properties for sale - net
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	17,735.18

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	2016
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Bid from financial
	
	
	Transfer of properties for
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	debt repayment/Bid from
	
	
	Total

	
	
	
	
	institutions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	debtors
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	7.6.1
	Immovable properties
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Beginning balance
	5,975.48
	11,312.30
	17,287.78

	
	
	Increase
	379.50
	4,255.74
	4,635.24

	
	
	Decrease
	(753.00)
	(1,946.76)
	(2,699.76)

	
	Ending balance
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	5,601.98
	
	
	13,621.28
	
	
	19,223.26

	7.6.2
	Movable properties
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Beginning balance
	3.97
	130.03
	134.00

	
	
	Increase
	-
	3.54
	3.54

	
	
	Decrease
	-
	(0.18)
	(0.18)

	
	Ending balance
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	3.97
	
	
	133.39
	
	
	137.36

	
	Total ending balance
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	5,605.95
	
	
	13,754.67
	
	
	19,360.62

	
	Less
	Revaluation of properties for sale
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(3,666.04)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Less
	Allowance for impairment of properties for sale
	
	
	
	(612.40)

	
	Properties for sale - net
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	15,082.18
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7.6
Properties for sale - net (cont.)

As at December 31, 2018, the appraised value of the immovable and movable properties for sale was 48,024.43 million Baht and 458.21 million Baht respectively (December 31, 2017: 43,668.23 million Baht and 412.81 million Baht; December 31, 2016: 37,655.86 million Baht and 389.88 million Baht respectively).

As at December 31, 2018, the Company granted debtors the buyback rights for the properties for sale of 213.09 million Baht (December 31, 2017: 189.63 million Baht; December 31, 2016: 205.43 million Baht). Properties for sale on the part appraised by an external appraiser and that by the internal appraiser as at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Appraised by external appraiser
	23,911.56
	20,003.54
	16,745.08

	Appraised by internal appraiser
	3,112.37
	3,157.45
	2,615.54

	Total
	27,023.93
	23,160.99
	19,360.62

	7.7    Accrued income from auction sale - net
	
	
	

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	External buyers
	5,463.42
	4,215.25
	2,640.74

	Less  Estimated auction sale expenses
	(390.67)
	(298.93)
	(205.52)

	External buyers - net
	5,072.75
	3,916.32
	2,435.22

	The Company as buyer
	2,042.70
	1,065.17
	590.82

	Accrued income from auction sale - net
	7,115.45
	4,981.49
	3,026.04



As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, accrued income from auction sale classified by outstanding period was as follows:

	
	
	2018
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	External buyers *
	
	The Company as
	
	Total

	
	
	
	buyer
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Overdue period
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Within 1 year
	1,550.51
	1,161.14
	2,711.65

	Over 1 year but not over 3 years
	2,073.94
	814.30
	2,888.24

	Over 3 years but not over 5 years
	758.92
	66.18
	825.10

	Over 5 years
	1,080.05
	1.08
	1,081.13

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	5,463.42
	2,042.70
	7,506.12
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	7.7
	Accrued income from auction sale - net (cont.)
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	2017
	

	
	
	External buyers *
	The Company
	Total

	
	
	
	as buyer
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue period
	
	
	

	
	Within 1 year
	1,567.00
	641.11
	2,208.11

	
	Over 1 year but not over 3 years
	1,124.17
	422.99
	1,547.16

	
	Over 3 years but not over 5 years
	876.62
	-
	876.62

	
	Over 5 years
	647.46
	1.07
	648.53

	
	Total
	4,215.25
	1,065.17
	5,280.42

	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	2016
	

	
	
	External buyers *
	The Company
	Total

	
	
	
	as buyer
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue period
	
	
	

	
	Within 1 year
	857.07
	472.28
	1,329.35

	
	Over 1 year but not over 3 years
	988.47
	118.54
	1,107.01

	
	Over 3 years but not over 5 years
	320.12
	-
	320.12

	
	Over 5 years
	475.08
	-
	475.08

	
	Total
	2,640.74
	590.82
	3,231.56



· The Company will record accrued income from auction sale on the day when the buyer has made full

payment to Legal Execution Department.
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7.8
Premises and equipment - net

Premises and equipment as at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 consisted of:

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	
	2018
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	Cost
	
	
	
	Accumulated depreciation
	
	

	
	Items
	Beginning
	Increased/
	Disposed/
	Ending
	Beginning
	
	
	Ending
	Net book

	
	
	
	Received
	
	
	
	Depreciation
	Disposed
	
	value

	
	
	balance
	
	Transfer
	balance
	balance
	
	
	balance
	

	
	
	
	from transfer
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1.
	Land
	780.03
	20.79
	22.62
	778.20
	-
	-
	-
	-
	778.20

	2.
	Buildings
	434.07
	4.35
	6.50
	431.92
	227.55
	21.57
	3.55
	245.57
	186.35

	3.
	Building improvement
	415.28
	44.14
	9.45
	449.97
	248.30
	49.94
	9.45
	288.79
	161.18

	4.
	Equipment
	619.17
	33.42
	41.20
	611.39
	461.37
	65.83
	41.20
	486.00
	125.39

	5.
	Work in process
	20.72
	20.68
	40.98
	0.42
	-
	-
	-
	-
	0.42

	
	Total
	2,269.27
	123.38
	120.75
	2,271.90
	937.22
	137.34
	54.20
	1,020.36
	1,251.54

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	
	2017
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	Cost
	
	
	
	Accumulated depreciation
	
	

	
	Items
	Beginning
	Increased/
	Disposed/
	Ending
	Beginning
	
	
	Ending
	Net book

	
	
	
	Received
	
	
	
	Depreciation
	Disposed
	
	value

	
	
	balance
	
	Transfer
	balance
	balance
	
	
	balance
	

	
	
	
	from transfer
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1.
	Land
	780.03
	-
	-
	780.03
	-
	-
	-
	-
	780.03

	2.
	Buildings
	434.07
	-
	-
	434.07
	205.84
	21.71
	-
	227.55
	206.52

	3.
	Building improvement
	400.83
	17.15
	2.70
	415.28
	201.07
	48.31
	1.08
	248.30
	166.98

	4.
	Equipment
	563.10
	64.16
	8.09
	619.17
	395.12
	74.34
	8.09
	461.37
	157.80

	5.
	Work in process
	1.13
	36.24
	16.65
	20.72
	-
	-
	-
	-
	20.72

	
	Total
	2,179.16
	117.55
	27.44
	2,269.27
	802.03
	144.36
	9.17
	937.22
	1,332.05

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	
	
	2016
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	Cost
	
	
	
	Accumulated depreciation
	
	

	
	Items
	Beginning
	Increased/
	Disposed/
	Ending
	Beginning
	
	
	Ending
	Net book

	
	
	
	Received
	
	
	
	Depreciation
	Disposed
	
	value

	
	
	balance
	
	Transfer
	balance
	balance
	
	
	balance
	

	
	
	
	from transfer
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1.
	Land
	755.14
	24.89
	-
	780.03
	-
	-
	-
	-
	780.03

	2.
	Buildings
	427.25
	6.82
	-
	434.07
	184.41
	21.43
	-
	205.84
	228.23

	3.
	Building improvement
	328.79
	72.40
	0.36
	400.83
	150.48
	50.62
	0.03
	201.07
	199.76

	4.
	Equipment
	572.84
	52.70
	62.44
	563.10
	383.57
	73.96
	62.41
	395.12
	167.98

	5.
	Work in process
	31.34
	40.00
	70.21
	1.13
	-
	-
	-
	-
	1.13

	
	Total
	2,115.36
	196.81
	133.01
	2,179.16
	718.46
	146.01
	62.44
	802.03
	1,377.13



As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had amount of building improvement, equipment and vehicles which had fully been depreciated but they were still in use. The cost before accumulated depreciation amounted to 395.91 million Baht, 359.14 million Baht and 272.88 million Baht respectively.
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7.9
Intangible assets - net

Intangible assets as at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 comprised:

	
	
	
	
	
	2018
	
	

	
	
	Cost
	
	
	
	Accumulated amortization

	
	
	Increased/
	
	
	
	
	

	Items
	Beginning
	Received
	Disposed/
	Ending
	Beginning
	Amortization
	Disposed/

	
	balance
	from
	Transfer
	balance
	balance
	
	Transfer

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	transfer
	
	
	
	
	

	1. Computer software
	69.02
	5.45
	-
	74.47
	58.37
	3.97
	-

	2. Work in process
	-
	1.84
	0.69
	1.15
	-
	-
	-

	Total
	69.02
	7.29
	0.69
	75.62
	58.37
	3.97
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	2017
	
	

	
	
	Cost
	
	
	
	Accumulated amortization

	
	
	Increased/
	
	
	
	
	

	Items
	Beginning
	Received
	Disposed/
	Ending
	Beginning
	Amortization
	Disposed/

	
	balance
	from
	Transfer
	balance
	balance
	
	Transfer

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	transfer
	
	
	
	
	

	1. Computer software
	66.01
	3.01
	-
	69.02
	54.33
	4.04
	-

	2. Work in process
	0.22
	0.25
	0.47
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Total
	66.23
	3.26
	0.47
	69.02
	54.33
	4.04
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	2016
	
	

	
	
	Cost
	
	
	
	Accumulated amortization

	
	
	Increased/
	
	
	
	
	

	Items
	Beginning
	Received
	Disposed/
	Ending
	Beginning
	Amortization
	Disposed/

	
	balance
	from
	Transfer
	balance
	balance
	
	Transfer

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	transfer
	
	
	
	
	

	1. Computer software
	60.74
	5.28
	0.01
	66.01
	49.88
	4.45
	-

	2. Work in process
	0.36
	0.95
	1.09
	0.22
	-
	-
	-

	Total
	61.10
	6.23
	1.10
	66.23
	49.88
	4.45
	-






Unit : Million Baht

	Ending
	Net book

	
	value

	balance
	

	
	

	62.34
	12.13

	-
	1.15

	62.34
	13.28

	Unit : Million Baht



	Ending
	Net book

	
	value

	balance
	

	
	

	58.37
	10.65

	-
	-

	58.37
	10.65

	Unit : Million Baht



	Ending
	Net book

	
	value

	balance
	

	
	

	54.33
	11.68

	-
	0.22

	54.33
	11.90



As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had amount of intangible assets which had fully been amortized but they were still in use. The cost value before accumulated amortization was amounted to 50.77 million Baht, 49.36 million Baht and 42.79 million Baht respectively.
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7.10
Other assets

Other assets as at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were as below:

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Prepaid expenses and deferred expenses
	57.11
	57.54
	54.31

	Accrued income, interest and dividend receivables
	36.20
	42.95
	36.69

	Advance for litigation expenses
	18.91
	36.71
	25.57

	Advance for expenses on asset acquisition,
	
	
	

	registration fees and others
	1,217.28
	825.16
	721.55

	Employee welfare receivables
	58.43
	68.50
	75.90

	Others
	17.39
	14.06
	19.48

	Total
	1,405.32
	1,044.92
	933.50



7.11
Classified assets/asset quality

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company’ s classified assets consisted of investment in securities, loans purchased, installment sale receivables and properties for sale which were classified according to the BOT’s criteria, including analysis of debtors of each type and assessment of each debtor’s status, as follows:

	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	2018
	
	

	
	Investment
	Loans
	Installment sale
	Properties for sale
	Total

	
	in securities
	purchased
	receivables
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Asset classification
	
	
	
	
	

	Pass
	-
	3,977.68
	1,210.54
	-
	5,188.22

	Special mention
	-
	1,110.31
	200.76
	-
	1,311.07

	Substandard
	-
	2,424.65
	30.48
	-
	2,455.13

	Doubtful
	-
	17.37
	4.66
	-
	22.03

	Doubtful of loss
	416.74
	74,188.98
	6.40
	522.56
	75,134.68

	Total
	416.74
	81,718.99
	1,452.84
	522.56
	84,111.13
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7.11
Classified assets/asset quality (cont.)

	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	2017
	
	

	
	Investment
	Loans
	Installment sale
	Properties for sale
	Total

	
	in securities
	purchased
	receivables
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Asset classification
	
	
	
	
	

	Pass
	-
	2,730.21
	867.10
	-
	3,597.31

	Special mention
	-
	766.84
	56.06
	-
	822.90

	Substandard
	-
	1,080.07
	21.24
	-
	1,101.31

	Doubtful
	-
	85.76
	218.96
	-
	304.72

	Doubtful of loss
	394.95
	75,166.29
	1.44
	543.06
	76,105.74

	Total
	394.95
	79,829.17
	1,164.80
	543.06
	81,931.98

	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	2016
	
	

	
	Investment
	Loans
	Installment sale
	Properties for sale
	Total

	
	in securities
	purchased
	receivables
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Asset classification
	
	
	
	
	

	Pass
	-
	1,998.83
	2,022.60
	-
	4,021.43

	Special mention
	-
	546.94
	32.13
	-
	579.07

	Substandard
	-
	875.65
	31.69
	-
	907.34

	Doubtful
	-
	69.65
	10.04
	-
	79.69

	Doubtful of loss
	382.82
	74,484.03
	302.48
	612.40
	75,781.73

	Total
	382.82
	77,975.10
	2,398.94
	612.40
	81,369.26
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7.12
Debt issued and borrowings

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, notes payable, borrowings and debentures were classified by type and maturity as follows:

	
	Interest rate

	
	(Percentage)

	Notes payable
	
	

	Short term
	0 -
	2.30

	Long term
	0 -
	2.30

	Less Deferred interest expense
	
	

	Notes payable aval expense
	
	

	Total notes payable
	
	

	Borrowings
	
	

	Short term
	2.70
	- 3.55


	Long term
	2.70 - 3.55

	Less Deferred credit fee
	

	Total borrowings
	

	Total notes payable and borrowings

	Debentures
	

	Series of 1/2016
	Fixed 2.71 and 3.79

	Series of 1/2017
	Fixed 2.38, 3.41, 3.64 and 3.92

	Series of 2/2017
	Fixed 2.03, 2.53, 3.44, 3.73 and 3.91

	Series of 1/2018
	Fixed 2.18, 2.50, 3.88 and 4.30

	Total
	

	Less Debenture issue expense

	Total debentures
	

	Grand total
	




	
	Unit : Million Baht

	2018
	
	

	Maturity
	Interest payment
	Amount

	2019
	Interest payment upon maturity
	2,281.40

	2020 - 2026
	Interest payment upon maturity
	2,259.39

	
	
	(220.40)

	
	
	(7.79)

	
	
	4,312.60

	
	Interest payment every month-
	

	2019
	end/upon maturity/every 3
	9,547.45

	
	months/every 6 months
	

	
	Interest payment every month-
	

	2020 - 2023
	end/upon maturity/every 3
	11,686.44

	
	months/every 6 months
	

	
	
	(1.65)

	
	
	21,232.24

	
	
	25,544.84

	22 Dec 19 and 23
	Interest payment every 6 months
	2,100.00

	23 Jun 20, 22, 24 and 27
	Interest payment every 6 months
	5,100.00

	8 Mar 19, 8 Sep 21, 23, 25 and 27
	Interest payment every 6 months
	17,000.00

	21 Dec 19, 21 Jun 21, 25 and 28
	Interest payment every 6 months
	8,000.00

	
	
	32,200.00

	
	
	(35.56)

	
	
	32,164.44

	
	
	57,709.28



7.12
Debt issued and borrowings (cont.)

	
	Interest rate

	
	(Percentage)

	Notes payable
	
	

	Short term
	0 -
	2.50

	Long term
	0 -
	2.30

	Less   Deferred interest expense
	
	

	Notes payable aval expense
	
	

	Total notes payable
	
	

	Borrowings
	
	

	Short term
	2.00
	- 3.50


	
	Long term
	2.85 - 3.50

	Less
	Deferred credit fee
	

	
	Total borrowings
	

	Total notes payable and borrowings

	Debentures
	

	
	Series of 1/2015
	Fixed 2.75

	
	Series of 1/2016
	Fixed 2.41, 2.71 and 3.79

	
	Series of 1/2017
	Fixed 2.17, 2.38, 3.41, 3.64 and 3.92

	
	Series of 2/2017
	Fixed 2.03, 2.53, 3.44, 3.73 and 3.91

	
	Total
	

	Less
	Debenture issue expense

	
	Total debentures
	

	Grand total
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	Unit : Million Baht

	2017
	
	

	Maturity
	Interest payment
	Amount

	2018
	Interest payment upon maturity
	2,534.22

	2019 - 2026
	Interest payment upon maturity
	2,163.99

	
	
	(138.27)

	
	
	(24.81)

	
	
	4,535.13

	
	Interest payment every month-
	

	2018
	end/upon maturity /every 3
	10,812.47

	
	months/every 6 months
	

	
	Interest payment every month-
	

	2019-2021
	end/upon maturity /every 3
	10,761.22

	
	months/every 6 months
	

	
	
	(2.99)

	
	
	21,570.70

	
	
	26,105.83

	17 Dec 18
	Interest payment every 6 months
	1,800.00

	22 Jun 18, 22 Dec 19 and 23
	Interest payment every 6 months
	6,400.00

	23 Dec 18, 23 Jun 20, 22, 24 and 27
	Interest payment every 6 months
	5,600.00

	8 Mar 19, 8 Sep 21, 23, 25 and 27
	Interest payment every 6 months
	17,000.00

	
	
	30,800.00

	
	
	(37.36)

	
	
	30,762.64

	
	
	56,868.47



7.12
Debt issued and borrowings (cont.)

	
	
	Interest rate

	
	
	(Percentage)

	Notes payable
	

	
	Short term
	0 - 4.065

	
	Long term
	0 - 3.250

	Less
	Deferred interest expense
	

	
	Notes payable aval expense

	
	Discount on promissory notes

	
	Total notes payable
	

	Borrowings
	

	
	Short term
	2.30 - 3.50

	
	Long term
	2.85 - 3.50

	Less
	Deferred credit fee
	

	
	Total borrowings
	

	Total notes payable and borrowings

	Debentures
	

	
	Series of 1/2014
	Fixed 3.33

	
	Series of 1/2015
	Fixed 2.59 and 2.75

	
	Series of 1/2016
	Fixed 2.41, 2.71 and 3.79

	
	Total
	

	Less
	Debenture issue expense
	

	
	Total debentures
	

	Grand total
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2016

Maturity

2017

2018 - 2025

2017

2018 - 2020

12 Dec 17

17 Dec 17 and 18

22 Jun 18, 22 Dec 19 and 23



Unit : Million Baht

Interest payment
Amount

	Interest payment upon
	4,977.64

	maturity/every 6 months
	

	
	

	Interest payment upon
	1,021.31

	maturity/every 6 months
	

	
	

	
	(129.24)

	
	(10.69)

	
	(1.50)

	
	5,857.52

	Interest payment every month-
	

	end/every 3 months/every 6
	12,343.10

	months
	

	Interest payment every month-
	

	end/every 3 months/every 6
	15,551.02

	months
	

	
	(4.40)

	
	27,889.72

	
	33,747.24

	Interest payment every 6 months
	4,500.00

	Interest payment every 6 months
	5,700.00

	Interest payment every 6 months
	6,400.00

	
	16,600.00

	
	(18.13)

	
	16,581.87

	
	50,329.11
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7.12
Debt issued and borrowings (cont.)

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had name-registered, non-subordinated, unsecured debentures, with no debenture holders’ representative, issued with a par value of 1,000. 00 Baht per unit, comprising:

2018

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Number
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Interest

	
	Series
	
	
	
	No.
	
	issued
	
	Amount issued
	
	Issuance date
	
	
	Maturity
	Redemption date
	
	
	rate

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(Million units)
	
	(Million Baht)
	
	
	
	
	period
	
	
	
	(% p.a.)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1/2016
	
	
	2
	
	1.00
	
	1,000.00
	
	
	22 December 2016
	
	
	3 years
	
	22 December 2019
	
	
	2.71

	1/2016
	3
	1.10
	
	1,100.00
	
	
	22 December 2016
	
	
	7 years
	22 December 2023
	3.79

	1/2017
	2
	0.80
	
	800.00
	
	
	23 June 2017
	
	
	3 years
	23 June 2020
	2.38

	1/2017
	3
	1.40
	
	1,400.00
	
	
	23 June 2017
	
	
	5 years
	23 June 2022
	3.41

	1/2017
	4
	1.40
	
	1,400.00
	
	
	23 June 2017
	
	
	7 years
	23 June 2024
	3.64

	1/2017
	5
	1.50
	
	1,500.00
	
	
	23 June 2017
	
	
	10 years
	23 June 2027
	3.92

	2/2017
	1
	4.00
	
	4,000.00
	
	
	8 September 2017
	1 year 6 months
	8 March 2019
	2.03

	2/2017
	2
	1.00
	
	1,000.00
	
	
	8 September 2017
	
	
	4 years
	8 September 2021
	2.53

	2/2017
	3
	3.80
	
	3,800.00
	
	
	8 September 2017
	
	
	6 years
	8 September 2023
	3.44

	2/2017
	4
	3.20
	
	3,200.00
	
	
	8 September 2017
	
	
	8 years
	8 September 2025
	3.73

	2/2017
	5
	5.00
	
	5,000.00
	
	
	8 September 2017
	
	
	10 years
	8 September 2027
	3.91

	1/2018
	1
	2.23
	
	2,230.00
	
	
	21 June 2018
	1 year 6 months
	21 December 2019
	2.18

	1/2018
	2
	3.00
	
	3,000.00
	
	
	21 June 2018
	
	
	3 years
	21 June 2021
	2.50

	1/2018
	3
	0.37
	
	370.00
	
	
	21 June 2018
	
	
	7 years
	21 June 2025
	3.88

	1/2018
	4
	2.40
	
	2,400.00
	
	
	21 June 2018
	
	
	10 years
	21 June 2028
	4.30

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	32,200.00
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2017
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Number
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Interest

	
	Series
	
	
	
	No.
	
	issued
	
	Amount issued
	
	Issuance date
	
	
	Maturity
	Redemption date
	
	
	rate

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(Million units)
	
	(Million Baht)
	
	
	
	
	period
	
	
	
	(% p.a.)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	1/2015
	
	
	2
	
	1.80
	
	1,800.00
	
	
	17 December 2015
	
	
	3 years
	
	17 December 2018
	
	
	2.75

	1/2016
	1
	4.30
	
	4,300.00
	
	
	22 December 2016
	
	
	1 year 6 months
	22 June 2018
	2.41

	1/2016
	2
	1.00
	
	1,000.00
	
	
	22 December 2016
	
	
	3 years
	22 December 2019
	2.71

	1/2016
	3
	1.10
	
	1,100.00
	
	
	22 December 2016
	
	
	7 years
	22 December 2023
	3.79

	1/2017
	1
	0.50
	
	500.00
	
	
	23 June 2017
	1 year 6 months
	23 December 2018
	2.17

	1/2017
	2
	0.80
	
	800.00
	
	
	23 June 2017
	
	
	3 years
	23 June 2020
	2.38

	1/2017
	3
	1.40
	
	1,400.00
	
	
	23 June 2017
	
	
	5 years
	23 June 2022
	3.41

	1/2017
	4
	1.40
	
	1,400.00
	
	
	23 June 2017
	
	
	7 years
	23 June 2024
	3.64

	1/2017
	5
	1.50
	
	1,500.00
	
	
	23 June 2017
	
	
	10 years
	23 June 2027
	3.92

	2/2017
	1
	4.00
	
	4,000.00
	
	
	8 September 2017
	1 year 6 months
	8 March 2019
	2.03

	2/2017
	2
	1.00
	
	1,000.00
	
	
	8 September 2017
	
	
	4 years
	8 September 2021
	2.53

	2/2017
	3
	3.80
	
	3,800.00
	
	
	8 September 2017
	
	
	6 years
	8 September 2023
	3.44

	2/2017
	4
	3.20
	
	3,200.00
	
	
	8 September 2017
	
	
	8 years
	8 September 2025
	3.73

	2/2017
	5
	5.00
	
	5,000.00
	
	
	8 September 2017
	
	
	10 years
	8 September 2027
	3.91

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	30,800.00
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7.12
Debt issued and borrowings (cont.)

	
	
	
	
	2016
	
	
	

	
	
	Number
	
	
	
	
	Interest

	Series
	No.
	issued
	Amount issued
	Issuance date
	Maturity
	Redemption date
	rate

	
	
	(Million units)
	(Million Baht)
	
	period
	
	(% p.a.)

	1/2014
	-
	4.50
	4,500.00
	12 December 2014
	3 years
	12 December 2017
	3.33

	1/2015
	1
	3.90
	3,900.00
	17 December 2015
	2 years
	17 December 2017
	2.59

	1/2015
	2
	1.80
	1,800.00
	17 December 2015
	3 years
	17 December 2018
	2.75

	1/2016
	1
	4.30
	4,300.00
	22 December 2016
	1 year 6 months
	22 June 2018
	2.41

	1/2016
	2
	1.00
	1,000.00
	22 December 2016
	3 years
	22 December 2019
	2.71

	1/2016
	3
	1.10
	1,100.00
	22 December 2016
	7 years
	22 December 2023
	3.79

	
	
	
	16,600.00
	
	
	
	



7.13
Accrued interest payable

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	
	
	
	
	2017
	
	2016
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Promissory notes
	4.14
	
	
	
	
	18.64
	27.95

	Loans
	53.77
	
	
	
	
	73.25
	93.01

	Debentures
	187.45
	
	
	
	
	185.32
	19.12

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	245.36
	
	
	
	
	277.21
	140.08

	7.14  Provisions
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, provisions consisted of :
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	
	
	
	
	2017
	
	
	2016
	

	Provisions for employee benefits
	744.05
	
	
	
	
	726.29
	
	705.99
	

	Provisions for litigation cases
	25.47
	
	
	
	
	25.47
	
	20.20
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	769.52
	
	
	
	
	751.76
	
	726.19
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7.14.1
Provisions for employee benefits

Provisions for long- term employee benefits which are post- employment compensation for employees were presented as below:

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Provisions for long-term employee benefits in beginning of the year
	726.29
	705.99
	591.81

	Recognized to profit or loss:
	
	
	

	Current service cost
	44.81
	45.16
	39.40

	Interest cost
	21.28
	20.71
	23.72

	Past service cost and profit/loss arising from
	
	
	

	benefit payment
	-
	-
	21.34

	Recognized to other comprehensive income:
	
	
	

	(Gain) Loss by actuarial estimates
	
	
	

	Portion arising from change in demographic assumptions
	-
	-
	9.06

	Portion arising from change in financial assumptions
	-
	-
	62.36

	Portion arising from experience-based adjustment
	-
	-
	(4.00)

	Benefit paid during the year
	(48.33)
	(45.57)
	(37.70)

	Provisions for long-term employee benefits in ending of the year
	744.05
	726.29
	705.99



The Company had put in place an employee benefit project under which post-employment compensation was paid to its employees according to the employment agreement. Provisions for employee benefits were calculated by an actuary by the projected unit credit method, using statistical data as a factor in estimating present value of cash flow of future benefits payable and using a discount rate based on the yield of government bond that had the duration period compatible with the period of such provisions. The calculated amount was presented as part of the provisions. The actuarial gains ( losses) were recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income.

Key assumptions for actuarial estimates could be summarized below:

	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : % per year

	
	2018
	
	
	2017
	
	
	2016

	Discount rate
	3.07
	
	
	3.07
	3.07

	Salary increase rate
	8.00
	
	
	8.00
	8.00

	Inflation rate
	2.50
	
	
	2.50
	2.50
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7.14.1
Provisions for employee benefits (cont.)

Employee turnover rates classified by age group were as shown below:

	
	
	Unit : % per year

	2018
	2017
	
	2016

	less than 30 years
	8.00
	8.00
	8.00

	30 years - less than 40 years
	2.00
	2.00
	2.00

	40 years - less than 50 years
	1.00
	1.00
	1.00



The Company has expected to pay long-term employee benefits in the next one year in amount of approximately 53.79 million Baht (December 31, 2017: 49.28 million Baht; December 31, 2016: 45.35 million Baht).

As at December 31, 2018, the weighted average period of payment of long-term employee benefits was approximately 10.9 years (December 31, 2017: 10.9 years; December 31, 2016: 11 years).

Effects of the change in key assumptions on the present value of long-term employee benefit obligations as at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 can be summarized as follows:

	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	2018
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Liabilities increase
	
	
	Liabilities decrease

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Discount rate
	Decrease 1%
	64.86
	
	Increase 1%
	56.41

	Salary increase rate
	Increase 1%
	74.82
	
	Decrease 1%
	66.09

	Employee turnover rate
	Decrease 20%
	5.11
	
	Increase 20%
	4.92

	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	2017
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Liabilities increase
	
	
	Liabilities decrease

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Discount rate
	Decrease 1%
	65.45
	
	
	Increase 1%
	56.88

	Salary increase rate
	Increase 1%
	67.85
	
	
	Decrease 1%
	60.18

	Employee turnover rate
	Decrease 20%
	4.37
	
	
	Increase 20%
	4.22

	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	2016
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Liabilities increase
	
	
	Liabilities decrease

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Discount rate
	Decrease 1%
	65.83
	
	
	Increase 1%
	57.11

	Salary increase rate
	Increase 1%
	61.03
	
	
	Decrease 1%
	54.29

	Employee turnover rate
	Decrease 20%
	3.70
	
	
	Increase 20%
	3.59
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7.14.1
Provisions for employee benefits (cont.)

However, there are risks or special incidents that could be crucial to the estimation such as a significant change or movement in the number of employees and change in economic conditions that could affect the government bond yield and the discount rate used in the estimation. In case of such special incident, the Company will re-estimate the employee benefit obligations in order to identify the impact thereof on its financial statements.

Moreover, the Company established Sinthavi Provident Fund, which was registered on May 13, 1999, according to Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530, as another type of welfare for its employees, with BBL Asset Management Co., Ltd. as the Fund manager. Based on the Fund’s regulation, the Company’s employees may voluntarily apply for the Fund membership upon being employed as permanent staff. Fund member has to make monthly contribution to the Fund at a rate of 3%-15% of his/her monthly salary depending on his/her years of service. The Company later co-established K Master Pooled Fund, registered on May 1, 2014, with Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd. as the Fund manager. Such Fund allows members to select more than one investment policy to best meet their individual requirements, hence another option for the employees. The Company and the employees make contributions to the Fund at the designated rates. The employees will obtain benefits according to the Fund regulation.

As at December 31, 2018, the Company paid 95. 08 million Baht to the provident funds, regarded as expenses on the statements of profit or loss (December 31, 2017: 94.04 million Baht; and December 31, 2016: 83.66 million Baht).

7.14.2
Provisions for litigation cases

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	2018
	2017
	
	2016

	Beginning balance of the year
	25.47
	20.20
	20.20

	Additional provisions
	-
	5.27
	-

	Ending balance of the year
	25.47
	25.47
	20.20
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7.15
Unearned income from auction sale

On July 31, 2018, the Company received proceeds of 5,342.01 million Baht from an auction sale of collateral assets of one of its debtors from Legal Execution Department. The Company, as the preferential creditor, had submitted a request to receive the proceeds from the auction of such collateral assets because the debtor and two other creditors (Creditor No. 3 and Creditor No. 150) had filed a petition for withdrawal of such auction with the Central Bankruptcy Court .

However, payment to the Company, Legal Execution Department imposed a condition requiring the Company to issue a written confirmation that, in the event that the court orders the withdrawal of such auction, the Company shall return such proceeds to the debtor property fund (Legal Execution Department) by the designated date. The Company already issued and submitted the letter of confirmation to abide by such condition to Legal Execution Department.

Later on, the Court of First Instance ordered a dismissal of the petition for withdrawal of the auction lodged by the debtor and two other creditors. However, the debtor and two other creditors can seek permission to file an appeal to the Appeal/ Supreme Court. The Company is currently getting updates on the result of the Court’s consideration.

Therefore, The Company’s Management views that the legal process cannot be deemed complete until documents indicating the completion are received.
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7.16
Other liabilities

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Tax payable and accrued expenses
	734.83
	380.15
	345.64

	Deposit and marginal deposit
	297.68
	110.13
	97.04

	Liabilities between Bangkok Commerce Plc. and the Company
	19.16
	19.16
	19.16

	Suspense account and clearing cheque
	154.96
	96.32
	128.77

	Suspense account for debt repayment
	145.95
	351.58
	375.82

	Financial creditors selling right to claim
	364.64
	-
	939.52

	Others
	20.60
	19.27
	12.69

	Total
	1,737.82
	976.61
	1,918.64



As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, part of deposit and marginal deposit of 89.17 million Baht, 103.41 million Baht and 88.07 million Baht respectively was deposit from sale of properties for sale.

As at December 31, 2018, the financial creditor selling right to claim totaling 3 6 4 . 6 4 million Baht was the outstanding amount payable for purchase of NP Ls under the asset transfer agreement dated December 25, 2018, with 5% of the payment by cash on the execution date thereof and the remaining payable by promissory notes within 45 days from the execution date thereof.

7.17
Share capital

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had registered and paid-up capital as follows:

	
	2018
	
	2017
	
	2016
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Number of
	
	
	
	Number of
	
	
	Number of
	
	

	
	shares
	Amount
	
	shares
	Amount
	shares
	Amount

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	(Million shares)
	(Million Baht)
	
	(Million shares)
	(Million Baht)
	(Million shares)
	(Million Baht)

	Authorized share capital
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Registered capital at beginning of the year
	3,245
	
	16,225
	
	3,245
	
	16,225
	
	3,245
	
	
	16,225
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Registered capital at ending of the year
	3,245
	
	16,225
	
	3,245
	
	16,225
	
	3,245
	
	
	16,225
	

	Issued and paid-up share capital
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Issued and paid-up share capital at beginning of the year
	2,735
	
	13,675
	
	2,735
	
	13,675
	
	2,735
	
	
	13,675
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Issued and paid-up share capital at ending of the year
	2,735
	
	13,675
	
	
	2,735
	
	13,675
	
	2,735
	
	
	13,675
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7.18
Legal reserve

Under Section 116 of Public Limited Company Act B. E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside an annual net profit as reserves of not less than 5% of annual net profit less accumulated loss brought forward ( if any) until the reserves become not less than 10% of its registered capital. Such legal reserve cannot be used for dividend payment. At present, the Company has made appropriation to the legal reserve in full.

7.19
Profit appropriation and dividend payment

	
	
	Dividend paid
	Dividend paid

	Dividend
	Approved by
	
	per share

	
	
	(Million Baht)
	

	
	
	
	(Baht)

	
	
	
	

	Special dividend
	Annual General Meeting 2018
	1,700.08
	0.6216

	
	on April 27, 2018
	
	

	Dividend for the year 2017
	Annual General Meeting 2018
	2,700.54
	0.9874

	
	on April 27, 2018
	
	

	
	
	4,400.62
	

	Special dividend
	Extraordinary General Meeting
	1,000.19
	0.3657

	
	No. 2/2017
	
	

	
	on November 14, 2017
	
	

	Dividend for the year 2016
	Annual General Meeting 2017
	2,961.46
	1.0828

	
	on April 29, 2017
	
	

	
	
	3,961.65
	

	Dividend for the year 2015
	Annual General Meeting 2016
	3,842.68
	1.4050

	
	on April 29, 2016
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	3,842.68
	



7.20
Capital management

The main objective of capital management is to ensure an appropriate capital structure to support the Company’ s business operation and enhance the shareholding value for the shareholders. As at December 31, 2018, the Company had the debt to equity ratio of 1.57 : 1 (December 31, 2017: 1.43 : 1 and December 31, 2016: 1.31 : 1).
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7.21
Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 can be summarized below:

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	2018
	2017
	
	2016

	Current income tax expenses :
	
	
	

	Corporate income tax for the year
	7.28
	8.21
	12.24

	Income tax expenses stated in statements of profit or loss and other
	
	
	

	comprehensive income
	7.28
	8.21
	12.24



Reconciliation between the income tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate applicable for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 is presented below:

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Tax-exempted
	
	Taxable
	
	Total

	
	profit
	
	profit
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Profit before corporate income tax
	5,154.46
	54.85
	5,209.31

	Corporate income tax rate
	
	20%
	
	

	Profit before corporate income tax multiplied by tax
	-
	10.97
	10.97

	Tax impact in case of
	
	
	
	
	

	Prohibited expenses
	-
	0.04
	0.04

	Additional deductible expenses
	-
	(0.04)
	(0.04)

	Tax-exempted income
	-
	(3.69)
	(3.69)

	Income tax expenses in statements of profit
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	or loss and other comprehensive income
	-
	7.28
	7.28
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	7.21   Income tax expenses (cont.)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	2017
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Tax-exempted
	
	Taxable
	
	Total

	
	profit
	
	profit
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Profit before corporate income tax
	4,444.82
	
	
	64.21
	4,509.03

	Corporate income tax rate
	
	
	
	20%
	
	

	Profit before corporate income tax multiplied by tax
	-
	
	
	12.84
	12.84

	Tax impact in case of
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Prohibited expenses
	-
	
	
	0.16
	0.16

	Additional deductible expenses
	-
	
	
	(0.04)
	(0.04)

	Tax-exempted income
	-
	
	
	(4.75)
	(4.75)

	Income tax expenses in statements of profit
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	or loss and other comprehensive income
	-
	
	
	
	8.21

	
	
	
	
	
	8.21
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	2016
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Tax-exempted
	
	Taxable
	
	Total

	
	profit
	
	profit
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Profit before corporate income tax
	4,816.23
	
	
	99.62
	4,915.85

	Corporate income tax rate
	
	
	
	20%
	
	

	Profit before corporate income tax multiplied by tax
	-
	
	
	19.92
	19.92

	Tax impact in case of
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Prohibited expenses
	-
	
	
	0.24
	0.24

	Additional deductible expenses
	-
	
	
	(0.04)
	(0.04)

	Tax-exempted income
	-
	
	
	(7.88)
	(7.88)

	Income tax expenses in statements of profit
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	or loss and other comprehensive income
	-
	
	
	12.24
	12.24
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7.21
Income tax expenses (cont.)

For the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had net Tax- exempted profit of 5,154.46 million Baht, 4,444.82 million Baht and 4,816.23 million Baht respectively which were exempted from corporate income tax pursuant to the Royal Decree issued by virtue of the Revenue Code regarding Tax Exemption ( No. 362) B. E. 2542 stating that asset management companies with no less than 95% shareholding by the Financial Institutions Development Fund has been exempted from corporate income tax for net profit earned from management of NPLs/ NPAs acquired or transferred from financial institutions.

7.22
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the annual net profit on the shareholders’ portion ( excluding other comprehensive income) with the weighted average number of issued ordinary shares during the period.

Calculation of basic earnings per share is presented below:

	Earnings for the years
	
	
	
	Weighted average number
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ended December 31,
	
	
	
	of ordinary shares
	
	
	
	
	Earnings per share
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2018
	2017
	2016
	2018
	2017
	
	
	2016
	2018
	2017
	
	
	2016

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(Million
	
	(Million
	
	(Million
	
	
	
	(Million
	
	(Million
	(Million
	
	
	
	(Baht)
	
	(Baht)
	(Baht)

	Baht)
	
	Baht)
	
	Baht)
	
	
	
	shares)
	
	shares)
	shares)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	5,202.02
	4,500.82
	4,903.61
	2,735.00
	2,735.00
	
	
	2,735.00
	1.90
	1.65
	
	
	1.79


7.23
Related persons or parties

For the purpose of financial statement preparation, related persons or parties of the Company refer to persons or parties, over whom the Company has direct or indirect controlling power or significant influence with respect to their financial and managerial decisions, or which are under common control or significant influence with the Company. Such relation may be on an individual basis or a corporate basis. In the consideration of each related party transaction, the Company focuses more on the essence of the relation than on the legal form of the relation.
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7.23
Related persons or parties (cont.)

Relations between the Company and related entities are as follows:

	List of related entities
	
	Relations with the Company

	
	
	

	Financial Institutions Development Fund
	
	Major shareholder

	Krungthai Bank Plc.
	
	Having common shareholders

	KT Zmico Securities Co., Ltd.
	
	Having common shareholders

	Krungthai-AXA Life Insurance Plc.
	
	Having common shareholders

	Krungthai Panich Insurance Plc.
	
	Having common shareholders

	Bahoma Co., Ltd.
	
	Having common shareholders

	Big SPV Co., Ltd.
	
	Having common shareholders

	Sahatorn Co., Ltd.
	
	Having common shareholders

	Thai Asset Management Corporation (TAMC)
	
	Having common shareholders

	JAT Leasing Co., Ltd.
	
	Having common shareholders


During the year, the Company had related persons or parties transactions which were undertaken in accordance with trading conditions and criteria agreed upon between the Company and the related persons or parties as in normal course of business, details of which can be summarized below:

Outstanding amounts between the Company and related entities as at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were as tabulated here:
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7.23
Related persons or parties (cont.)

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Statements of financial position
	
	
	

	Cash at financial institutions
	
	
	

	Common shareholders
	16.65
	11.94
	14.68

	Investment in securities - net
	
	
	

	Common shareholders
	2.15
	2.15
	2.15

	Other assets - Accrued dividends
	
	
	

	Common shareholders
	35.81
	42.44
	35.81

	Debt issued and borrowings - Notes payable and borrowings
	
	
	

	Common shareholders
	1,098.18
	88.00
	107.73

	Debt issued and borrowings - Debentures
	
	
	

	Common shareholders
	1,107.70
	124.90
	-

	Accrued interest payable
	
	
	

	Common shareholders
	2.23
	0.79
	-

	Other liabilities - Rent guarantee
	
	
	

	Common shareholders
	0.10
	0.10
	0.09
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7.23
Related persons or parties (cont.)

	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016
	Pricing policy

	Statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
	
	
	

	Interest income - Cash at financial institutions
	
	
	
	As mutually agreed

	Common shareholders
	0.04
	0.04
	0.06
	

	Dividend income
	
	
	
	As mutually agreed

	Common shareholders
	36.77
	47.30
	72.76
	

	Other operating income - Rent and utilities
	
	
	
	As mutually agreed

	Common shareholders
	0.52
	0.65
	0.90
	

	Gain on sale of properties for sale
	
	
	
	As mutually agreed

	Related persons*
	2.47
	-
	-
	

	Interest expenses
	
	
	
	As in the prospectus and

	Major shareholders
	-
	-
	5.26
	as mutually agreed

	Common shareholders
	22.44
	4.72
	7.31
	



· Related persons refer to those having close relationship with the related persons, directors and executives.

Debt issued and borrowings from related entities

Movements of debt issued and borrowing transactions and financial creditors from purchase of properties for sale between the Company and related parties as at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Beginning
	
	Increase
	Decrease
	
	Ending

	
	balance
	
	
	
	
	balance

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Krungthai Bank Plc.
	208.00
	1,631.23
	
	
	195.05
	1,644.18

	Krungthai-AXA Life Insurance Plc.
	4.90
	527.00
	
	
	0.20
	531.70

	Krungthai Panich Insurance Plc.
	-
	30.00
	
	
	-
	30.00

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	212.90
	2,188.23
	
	
	195.25
	2,205.88
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7.23
Related persons or parties (cont.)

Debt issued and borrowings from related entities (cont.)

Beginning

balance


Debt issued and borrowings

Krungthai Bank Plc.
107.73

Krungthai-AXA Life Insurance Plc.
-


Total
107.73


	
	Beginning

	
	balance

	Debt issued and borrowings
	

	Financial Institutions Development Fund
	948.50

	Krungthai Bank Plc.
	303.03

	Thai Asset Management Corporation (TAMC)
	400.87

	Total
	1,652.40






	
	Unit : Million Baht

	2017
	
	

	Increase
	Decrease
	Ending

	
	
	balance

	
	
	

	812.98
	712.71
	208.00

	4.90
	-
	4.90

	817.88
	712.71
	212.90

	
	Unit : Million Baht

	2016
	
	

	Increase
	Decrease
	Ending

	
	
	balance

	
	
	

	-
	948.50
	-

	-
	195.30
	107.73

	-
	400.87
	-

	-
	1,544.67
	107.73



7.24
Directors' remuneration

For the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, remuneration paid to key executives in accordance with TAS 24 (Revised 2017): Related Party Disclosures, comprising directors, executives at Executive Vice President level and higher and executives in accounting or finance function line at department head level and higher, was as follows :

	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Short-term benefits
	101.27
	76.96
	86.53

	Post-employment benefits
	8.30
	7.84
	6.87

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	109.57
	84.80
	93.40
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7.25
Financial position and performance classified by operating segments

The Company’s main business is asset management and the business operations are carried out through key geographical operating segments in Thailand. The Board of Directors has the ultimate decision-making authority with regard to the operations. The Company divides its operating segments by products and services as follows:

1. Acquisition and receipt of transfer of NPLs from financial institutions for management, based mainly on debt compromise practices to ensure the optimum benefit for both parties.

2. Acquisition and receipt of transfer of NPAs from financial institutions, receipt of transfer of assets for debt settlement from debtors, and bid for collateralized assets of debtors from Legal Execution Department for management by focusing on improvement of the properties to be in a ready-to-use condition for enhancement of their value added, thereby ensuring the assets will meet the demand of target groups.
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7.25.1
Financial position classified by operating segments

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	2018
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	Asset Management Business

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	NPAs and
	
	

	
	
	NPLs
	
	investment
	
	Total

	
	
	
	
	in securities
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Investment in securities - net
	-
	93.94
	93.94

	Loans purchased - net
	75,433.94
	-
	75,433.94

	Installment sale receivables - net
	-
	708.30
	708.30

	Properties for sale - net
	-
	20,595.82
	20,595.82

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	75,433.94
	21,398.06
	96,832.00

	Cash
	
	
	
	3.61

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Cash at financial institutions
	
	
	
	1,031.80

	Accrued income from auction sale - net
	
	
	
	7,115.45

	Premises and equipment - net
	
	
	
	1,251.54

	Intangible assets - net
	
	
	
	13.28

	Other assets
	
	
	
	1,405.32

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total assets
	
	
	
	107,653.00

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	
	
	
	57,709.28

	Accrued interest payable
	
	
	
	245.36

	Provisions
	
	
	
	769.52

	Unearned income from auction sale
	
	
	
	5,342.01

	Other liabilities
	
	
	
	1,737.82

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total liabilities
	
	
	
	65,803.99
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7.25.1
Financial position classified by operating segments (cont.)

	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2017
	
	

	
	
	

	
	Asset Management Business

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	NPAs and
	
	

	
	NPLs
	
	investment
	
	Total

	
	
	
	in securities
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Investment in securities - net
	-
	139.57
	139.57

	Loans purchased - net
	72,885.78
	-
	72,885.78

	Installment sale receivables - net
	-
	640.95
	640.95

	Properties for sale - net
	-
	17,735.18
	17,735.18

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	72,885.78
	18,515.70
	91,401.48

	Cash
	
	
	
	4.30

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Cash at financial institutions
	
	
	
	1,158.51

	Accrued income from auction sale - net
	
	
	
	4,981.49

	Premises and equipment - net
	
	
	
	1,332.05

	Intangible assets - net
	
	
	
	10.65

	Other assets
	
	
	
	1,044.92

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total assets
	
	
	
	99,933.40

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	
	
	
	56,868.47

	Accrued interest payable
	
	
	
	277.21

	Provisions
	
	
	
	751.76

	Other liabilities
	
	
	
	976.61

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total liabilities
	
	
	
	58,874.05

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


(TRANSLATION)

86

7.25.1
Financial position classified by operating segments (cont.)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	2016
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	Asset Management Business

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	NPAs and
	
	

	
	
	NPLs
	
	investment
	
	Total

	
	
	
	
	in securities
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Investment in securities - net
	-
	146.24
	146.24

	Loans purchased - net
	69,886.93
	-
	69,886.93

	Installment sale receivables - net
	-
	1,562.01
	1,562.01

	Properties for sale - net
	-
	15,082.19
	15,082.19

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	69,886.93
	16,790.44
	86,677.37

	Cash
	
	
	
	3.26

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Cash at financial institutions
	
	
	
	1,607.50

	Accrued income from auction sale - net
	
	
	
	3,026.04

	Premises and equipment - net
	
	
	
	1,377.13

	Intangible assets - net
	
	
	
	11.89

	Other assets
	
	
	
	933.51

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total assets
	
	
	
	93,636.70

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	
	
	
	50,329.11

	Accrued interest payable
	
	
	
	140.08

	Provisions
	
	
	
	726.19

	Other liabilities
	
	
	
	1,918.64

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total liabilities
	
	
	
	53,114.02
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7.25.2
Performance classified by operating segments

Unit : Million Baht

2018


	
	Performance of

	
	NPLs

	
	

	Interest income
	1,856.82

	Loss on investment in securities
	-

	Gain on loans purchased
	4,438.35

	Gain on sale of properties for sale
	-

	Gain on installment sale
	-

	Other operating income
	57.87

	
	

	Total operating income
	6,353.04

	
	

	Interest expenses
	1,155.95

	Other operating expenses
	

	Impairment loss of properties for sale (reversal)
	-

	Other operating expenses
	1,929.15

	
	

	Total operating expenses
	3,085.10

	
	

	Bad debts and doubtful accounts
	(162.19)

	
	

	Profit from operating before income tax expenses
	3,430.13

	Income tax expenses
	-

	
	

	Net profit
	3,430.13




	Performance of
	
	Other
	
	

	NPAs and investment
	
	
	
	Total

	
	
	performance
	
	

	in securities
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	92.92
	25.85
	1,975.59

	(30.31)
	-
	(30.31)

	-
	-
	4,438.35

	3,105.51
	-
	3,105.51

	115.21
	-
	115.21

	73.50
	15.42
	146.79

	
	
	
	
	

	3,356.83
	41.27
	9,751.14

	
	
	
	
	

	613.46
	-
	1,769.41

	(20.50)
	-
	(20.50)

	1,023.77
	2.20
	2,955.12

	
	
	
	
	

	1,616.73
	2.20
	4,704.03

	
	
	
	
	

	-
	-
	(162.19)

	
	
	
	
	

	1,740.10
	39.07
	5,209.30

	-
	7.28
	7.28

	
	
	
	
	

	1,740.10
	31.79
	5,202.02
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7.25.2
Performance classified by operating segments (cont.)

Unit : Million Baht

2017


	
	Performance of

	
	NPLs

	
	

	Interest income
	1,877.52

	Loss on investment in securities
	-

	Gain on loans purchased
	3,509.15

	Gain on sale of properties for sale
	-

	Gain on installment sale
	-

	Other operating income
	14.48

	
	

	Total operating income
	5,401.15

	
	

	Interest expenses
	1,162.52

	Other operating expenses
	

	Impairment loss of properties for sale (reversal)
	-

	Other operating expenses
	1,850.57

	
	

	Total operating expenses
	3,013.09

	
	

	Bad debts and doubtful accounts
	(1,024.93)

	
	

	Profit from operating before income tax expenses
	3,412.99

	Income tax expenses
	-

	
	

	Net profit
	3,412.99




	Performance of
	
	Other
	
	

	NPAs and investment
	
	
	
	Total

	
	
	performance
	
	

	in securities
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	117.29
	33.23
	2,028.04

	(2.56)
	-
	(2.56)

	-
	-
	3,509.15

	1,740.89
	-
	1,740.89

	184.44
	-
	184.44

	141.17
	10.23
	165.88

	
	
	
	
	

	2,181.23
	43.46
	7,625.84

	
	
	
	
	

	459.47
	-
	1,621.99

	(69.34)
	-
	(69.34)

	731.42
	7.10
	2,589.09

	
	
	
	
	

	1,121.55
	7.10
	4,141.74

	
	
	
	
	

	-
	-
	(1,024.93)

	
	
	
	
	

	1,059.68
	36.36
	4,509.03

	-
	8.21
	8.21

	
	
	
	
	

	1,059.68
	28.15
	4,500.82
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7.25.2
Performance classified by operating segments (cont.)

Unit : Million Baht

2016


Interest income

Gain on investment in securities

Gain on loans purchased

Gain on sale of properties for sale

Gain on installment sale

Other operating income

Total operating income

Interest expenses

Other operating expenses

Impairment loss of properties for sale

Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Bad debts and doubtful accounts

Profit from operating before income tax expenses

Income tax expenses

Net profit



Performance of

NPLs


1,232.30

-

4,224.33

-

-

11.80


5,468.43


791.30

-

1,585.97


2,377.27


21.07


3,070.09

-


3,070.09



	Performance of
	Other
	

	NPAs and investment
	
	Total

	
	performance
	

	in securities
	
	

	
	
	

	150.35
	19.73
	1,402.38

	20.04
	-
	20.04

	-
	-
	4,224.33

	2,362.61
	-
	2,362.61

	584.10
	-
	584.10

	128.29
	29.38
	169.47

	3,245.39
	49.11
	8,762.93

	452.86
	-
	1,244.16

	82.72
	-
	82.72

	907.65
	5.51
	2,499.13

	1,443.23
	5.51
	3,826.01

	-
	-
	21.07

	1,802.16
	43.60
	4,915.85

	-
	12.24
	12.24

	1,802.16
	31.36
	4,903.61



Information on geographical region

The Company operates business in one geographical region which is Thailand. As such, income and assets presented in the financial statements are regarded as reporting according to the geographical region.

Information on major customers

As of December 31, 2018, the Company had income of 1,073 million Baht (the amount equal to or exceeding 10% of the Company’s income) from one major customer as a result of the operation of non-performing loans ( NPLs) ( 2017 and 2016: The Company had no income from any customer in the amount equal to or exceeding 10% of the Company’s income.)
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	7.26
	Additional information about cash and significant non-cash items
	
	

	7.26.1  Cash and cash equivalents in statements of cash flows
	
	
	

	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	
	Cash
	3.61
	4.30
	3.26

	
	Deposits in transit
	9.89
	3.37
	5.06

	
	Current, saving, and fixed deposits
	1,021.81
	1,154.97
	1,601.82

	
	Less Deposits under guarantee obligation
	(3.74)
	(3.78)
	(3.78)

	
	Cash and cash equivalent items in statement of cash flows
	1,031.57
	1,158.86
	1,606.36



7.26.2
Cash paid for premises and equipment

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Payable from purchase of premises and equipment brought forward
	4.85
	3.32
	0.53

	Purchase of premises and equipment
	76.02
	100.90
	126.60

	Less Cash paid for premises and equipment
	(78.58)
	(99.37)
	(123.81)

	Payable from purchase of premises and equipment carried forward
	2.29
	4.85
	3.32



7.26.3
Cash paid for intangible assets

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	2018
	2017
	2016

	Payable from purchase of intangible assets brought forward
	1.28
	0.21
	0.28

	Purchase of intangible assets
	6.60
	2.79
	5.14

	Less  Cash paid for intangible assets
	(3.05)
	(1.72)
	(5.21)

	Payable from purchase of intangible assets carried forward
	4.83
	1.28
	0.21
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7.27
Assets with obligations

7.27.1
Obligations on operating lease agreements and long-term service agreements

The Company entered into operating lease agreements in relation to lease of land, building space and office equipment. Contractual terms range from 1 to 10 years.

As at December 31, 2 0 1 8 , 2017 and 2016, the Company had future payment obligation under the operating lease agreements which cannot be terminated in the minimum amount, as below:

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	2018
	2017
	
	2016

	Payment
	
	
	

	Within 1 year
	5.41
	3.22
	3.83

	Over 1 year but not over 5 years
	1.39
	2.24
	3.28

	Total
	6.80
	5.46
	7.11



7.27.2
Obligations on capital expenditure

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had obligations on capital expenditure with the contractual term of over 1 year as shown below:

	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	2018
	
	2017
	2016

	Payment
	
	
	

	Within 1 year
	-
	18.19
	18.19

	Total
	-
	18.19
	18.19



7.28
Guarantee

As at December 31, 2018, the Company had letters of guarantee issued by banks under the name of the Company in a total amount of 3. 74 million Baht ( December 31, 2017: 3. 78 million Baht; and December 31, 2016: 3.78 million Baht) to guarantee use of electricity and others.
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7.29
Contingent liabilities

As at December 31, 2018, the Company faced lawsuits with a total disputed amount of 779.40 million Baht (December 31, 2017: 5,626.07 million Baht; and December 31, 2016: 4,946.11 million Baht). Such lawsuits are civil cases involving claims for damages, which resulted from the Company’s normal course of business. The Company believes that when these cases have become final, they will not materially affect its financial position and operation. Therefore, the Company has not yet recognized such potential consequential damages as its expenses.

7.30
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

7.30.1
Fair value hierarchy

To adopt fair value measurement technique, the business must use noticeable information related to assets or liabilities aimed for fair value measurement as much as possible. TFRS 13 regarding fair value measurement has classified fair value into three levels according to type of data used for measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1
Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2
Other observable inputs of assets or liabilities, directly or indirectly

Level 3
Unobservable inputs such as data on projected future cash flows

7.30.2
Assets and liabilities presented in fair value

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had assets presented in fair value, classified by fair value hierarchy, as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

2018

	Net book
	
	Fair value
	

	value
	Level 1
	Level 2
	Level 3
	Total



Asset presented in fair value

Investment in securities

Marketable demand equity securities - domestic
88.15
88.15
-
-
88.15
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7.30.2
Assets and liabilities presented in fair value (cont.)

Unit



:



Million



Baht

Net book

value





Level





1


2017

Fair


Level 2





value


Level





3



Total


Asset



presented


in


fair


value

Investment in



securities

Marketable



demand equity



securities



-



domestic



109.14



109.14



-



-



109.14

Unit



:



Million



Baht

2016


Net book



Fair



value


value





Level





1



Level





2



Level





3



Total


Asset



presented



in



fair



value

Investment in



securities

Marketable



demand equity



securities



-



domestic



111.88



111.88



-



-



111.88

During the current period, there has been no transfer of transactions along the fair value hierarchy.

As at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had financial assets and liabilities presented at cost with fair value presentation, classified by fair value hierarchy as below:

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	2018
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Net book
	
	
	
	Fair value
	
	

	
	value
	
	Level 1
	
	Level 2
	
	Level 3
	
	Total

	Financial assets with fair value disclosure
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash
	3.61
	3.61
	-
	-
	3.61

	Cash at financial institutions
	1,031.80
	1,031.80
	-
	-
	1,031.80

	Investment in securities - net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	General investment
	5.79
	-
	-
	653.07
	653.07

	Loans purchased - net
	75,433.94
	-
	-
	116,566.13
	116,566.13

	Installment sale receivables - net
	708.30
	-
	-
	1,632.40
	1,632.40

	Accrued income from auction sale - net
	7,115.45
	-
	-
	7,115.45
	7,115.45

	Financial liabilities with fair value disclosure
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	57,709.28
	-
	-
	58,064.18
	58,064.18
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7.30.2
Assets and liabilities presented in fair value (cont.)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	2017
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Net book
	
	
	
	Fair value
	
	

	
	value
	
	Level 1
	
	Level 2
	
	Level 3
	
	Total

	Financial assets with fair value disclosure
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash
	4.30
	4.30
	-
	-
	4.30

	Cash at financial institutions
	1,158.51
	1,158.51
	-
	-
	1,158.51

	Investment in securities - net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	General investment
	30.43
	-
	-
	615.16
	615.16

	Loans purchased - net
	72,885.78
	-
	-
	116,436.21
	116,436.21

	Installment sale receivables - net
	640.95
	-
	-
	1,384.41
	1,384.41

	Accrued income from auction sale - net
	4,981.49
	-
	-
	4,981.49
	4,981.49

	Financial liabilities with fair value disclosure
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	56,868.47
	-
	-
	57,385.78
	57,385.78

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Unit : Million Baht

	
	
	
	
	2016
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Net book
	
	
	
	Fair value
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	value
	
	Level 1
	
	Level 2
	
	Level 3
	
	Total

	Financial assets with fair value disclosure
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash
	3.26
	3.26
	-
	-
	3.26

	Cash at financial institutions
	1,607.51
	1,607.51
	-
	-
	1,607.51

	Investment in securities - net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	General investment
	34.36
	-
	-
	518.53
	518.53

	Loans purchased - net
	69,886.93
	-
	-
	105,800.82
	105,800.82

	Installment sale receivables - net
	1,562.01
	-
	-
	2,585.11
	2,585.11

	Accrued income from auction sale - net
	3,026.04
	-
	-
	3,026.04
	3,026.04

	Financial liabilities with fair value disclosure
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt issued and borrowings
	50,329.11
	-
	-
	50,429.19
	50,429.19
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7.30.3
Financial Assets and liabilities disclosed in fair value

The Company has estimated fair value of financial instruments according to the following criteria:

(a) Financial assets to be matured in a short period of time or financial assets bearing interest rates comparable to market rates include cash, cash at financial institutions and accrued income from auction sale. Fair value of such assets is estimated at book value presented in the statement of financial position as they will be matured in a short period.

(b) Fair value of loans purchased duly undergoing debt restructuring can be calculated as follows:

1. Classified debtors classes 1 and 2 are calculated from cash flow from debt settlement plan with MLR’s discount.

2. Classified debtors classes 3, 4 and 5 are calculated from cash flow from sale of collateral assets. The year in which sale is expected is calculated from litigation status with MLR’s discount, provided that the amount to be received must not exceed right obligations.

(c) For fair value of loans purchased not yet undergoing debt restructuring, present value of future cash flow is calculated from sale of collaterals. The year in which sale is expected is calculated from litigation status with MLR’s discount, provided that the amount to be received must not exceed right obligations.

(d) Fair value of installment sale receivables is calculated as follows:

1. Installment sale receivables with 0-3 months overdue payment are estimated from cash flow from debt settlement plan with MLR’s discount.

2. Installment sale receivables with over 3 months overdue payment are estimated from cash flow from sale of collaterals. The year in which sale is expected is calculated based on past sale experience with MLR’s discount.

(e) Fair value of debt issued and borrowings in the type of subordinated and unsubordinated debts is calculated by using return rate announced by the Thai Bond Market Association. Fair value of issued debt instruments and floating interest-bearing loans will be estimated with reference to book value of those with fixed interest-bearing and calculated based on present value of projected paid cash flow in future discounted by estimated interest rate in the current market for loans with similar conditions.

(f) Fair value of securities not listed on the stock market will be calculated using book value (BV) in the latest financial statement.
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7.31
Approval of the financial statements

These financial statements were approved for issuing by the Board of Directors of the Company on July 5, 2019.

..............................................................................

